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key figuRes  

  HgB, Ag

million E 2005 2004 Change

sales 112.6 113.3 -0.6%

Group sales* 

Consolidated sales

 essanelle – ihr Friseur 71.8 74.3 -3.4%

 Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle 5.1 5.5 -7.3%

 Top TEn 0.3 0 –

 super Cut 18.5 17.8 +3.9%

 HairExpress 13.7 13.1 +4.6%

 mod’s hair*

 Beauty Hair shop 3.2 2.6 +23.1%

EBiTDa 8.8 8.9 -1.1%

EBiT 3.1 2.7 +14.8%

EBT  2.6 1.8 +44.4%

Annual net income 2.3 1.5 +53.3%

Earnings per share 0.52 Euro 0.33 Euro +57.6%

Cash flow from operating activities 9.9 6.5 +52.3%

Cash flow per share 2.20 Euro 1.45 Euro +51.7%

number of employees 3,847 3,782

number of shares 4.5 million 4.5 million

free float 66.2% 7.18%

  

ifRs, ConsolidAted gRoup

 2005 2004 Change

 129.8 131.1 -1.0%

 113.5 114.7 -1.0%

 71.8 74.3 -3.4%

 5.1 5.5 -7.3%

 0.3 0 –

 18.5 17.8 +3.9%

 13.7 13.1 +4.6%

 17.2 17.8 -3.4%

 3.2 2.6 +23.1%

 10.1 10.1 0.0%

 5.4 4.9 +10.2%

 4.3 3.5 +22.9%

 2.6 2.0 +30.0%

 0.57 Euro 0.47 Euro +21.3%

 10.4 6.2 +67.8%

 2.32 1.38 +68.2%

 3,852 3,812

 4.5 million 4.5 million

 66.2% 7.18%

*of which external sales generated by franchisees and not included in 

consolidated sales: Euro 16.3 million (previous year: Euro 16.4 million)
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foRewoRd of tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd

ladies and Gentlemen,

We are very pleased to present you a 2005 annual report which impressively demonstrates that it is possible to 

be successful in spite of the lull in consumer confidence, weak domestic demand and increased competition. 

With the exception of sales, we have exceeded all of our targets. We have also achieved considerable improve-

ments compared with the previous year. 

What is more, in the past year we laid the foundations for placing our company on a consistent growth path and 

thus initiated a new stage in its history. We had already accelerated the pace of investment by the end of 2005. 

Having operated a constant total of around 550 salons in Germany in recent years, this figure rose to almost 600 

by the end of the year. This pace of investment is to be matched, if not exceeded, in the coming years. our spe-

cific objective is to grow by 50 salons per annum.

The foundation for successfully implementing our plans is provided by the degree of financial strength now 

achieved by our company: a high cash flow, which secures our financial strength; a healthy equity basis, with an 

equity ratio of over 40%; and clean cost structures at all of our salon concepts, thus safeguarding pleasing levels 

of profitability at our salons.

on the other hand, we have provided our strategy with a clearer focus on the market, demand structures and con-

sumer behaviour in terms of the salon structure and selection of locations. our new concepts, super Cut and 

HairExpress, made a considerable contribution to our pleasing performance in 2005. our focus on a comparatively 

young customer group at super Cut and on extremely price-sensitive customers at HairExpress has proved to be 

absolutely right. We now operate 79 super Cut and 81 HairExpress salons. Given that we have simultaneously 

succeeded in achieving significant improvements in terms of numbers at our strongest concept essanelle – ihr 

Friseur we now stand on very solid foundations indeed. 



4 / 5

uWE GrimminGEr aCHim mansEn

Foreword of the management Board



in order to maintain our successful course – growth with new concepts – we developed a further concept, Top 

TEn, in 2005 and brought it to market. The 10 euro hairdresser is currently the talk of the country. There is now a 

whole series of hairdressers seeking salvation in this genre. However, the coming years will see the sheep being 

separated from the goats in this area. Having undertaken detailed market studies, we decided to become active 

in this segment with Top TEn. The first such salons have already exceeded our expectations. Customers find the 

concept convincing and we are certain that Top TEn will enable us to generate significant sales and earnings 

growth in the coming years.

one more word on our location strategy: over a period of more than ten years, Essanelle Hair Group has devel-

oped from merely being a hairdresser at department stores into a company which now also offers its hairdressing 

services in shopping centres and consumer markets. our new Top TEn salon concept has also enabled us to 

expand our range of locations. We will operate this concept almost exclusively in so-called free situations at 

highly-frequented locations. 

our plans foresee an expansion of around 50% in the total number of our salons in the coming five years com-

pared with the beginning of 2005. This will have a corresponding impact on our sales and an even more marked 

impact on our earnings, which already improved for the fourth consecutive year in 2005. We plan to open at least 

50 salons in the current 2006 financial year alone. We also expect to close fewer salons than in the previous 

year, during which 17 salons were shut down. The salons newly opened in 2005 and in the first months of 2006 

mean that the foundations have been laid for sales growth in 2006. We expect sales to grow by between 5% and 

10%, but naturally continue to depend on consumer confidence levels in this respect. our key earnings figures 

were more than positive in 2005. our pre-tax earnings of Euro 4.3 million in line with iFrs not only represent the 

best results since our ipo – they are also in excess of our own forecasts. The majority of our new salons were 

only opened in the second half and towards the end of 2005. This means that a lower level of start-up losses 

was incurred in 2005, which in turn had a positive impact on our earnings. We will now incur part of these start-

up losses in 2006, which means that it will not be possible to achieve any significant rise in earnings this year. 

This will then follow in 2007. it goes without saying, however, that our minimum target for 2006 is at least to 

match the strong 2005 figures. The developments so far in 2006 give us confidence in this respect.
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The	desire	for	curly	hair	is	as	old	as	the	history	of	humankind.	Curlers	
were	curled	on	clay	curlers	in	3100	BC	already.	In	1906	the	hairdresser	
Karl	Nessler	invented	the	first	hot	wave.	Today’s	hairdressers	use	the	
alkaline	and	mildly	alkaline	perm,	which	 is	more	gentle	on	the	hair	
and	the	scalp.	Each	perm	changes	the	structures	within	the	hair,	with	
certain	joins	being	slackened	and	rejoined.	This	lends	a	new	shape	to	
the	hair.

brief guide to hairstyles

Since	the	beginning	of	the	20th	century

£•

The 
perm
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Long	hair	held	together	with	a	band	at	the	back	of	the	head.	This	hair-
style	 resembles	 a	 horse’s	 tail	 and	 is	 popular	 among	 all	 those	 with	
long	hair	–	and	not	only	when	playing	sport.	Bad	hair	days	can	also	be	
effectively	handled	with	the	assistance	of	a	ponytail.

brief guide to hairstyles

A	permanent	favourite	for	people	with	long	hair

Not only popular for sport!

o

The
 ponytail
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our employees represent the most important success factor in achieving these ambitious targets. We already 

provide about 4,000 secure jobs and will further expand this number in the coming years. after all, there is hardly 

any other sector which benefits as much from high-quality employees as does the hairdressing business. Every-

body knows never to go back to a hairdresser who has once cut their hair badly. We therefore accord high priority 

to high-quality training, regular training sessions in new up-to-date techniques and to enabling our hairdressers 

to participate directly in sales in cases of exceptional achievement. in this eminently important and decisive area 

– the personnel factor – we benefit particularly strongly from our competitive advantages over standalone hair-

dressers, who still make up 90% of the market in Germany. 

in line with the positive changes at our company, our share has also shown splendid developments. Following our 

first two extremely weak stock market years, since mid-2004 we have gained a considerable amount of ground, 

reaching an all-time high of Euro 8.78 in the past financial year. no small number of the analysts tracking our 

share believes an even higher price to be justified. This naturally represents a key objective of our growth plans: 

we aim to provide our shareholders with a pleasing performance and an appropriate return on their investments. 

We will continue to work towards achieving this goal with further pleasing developments at the company in 

2006. 

We should like to take this opportunity of thanking our investors for the trust they have placed in us and our 

employees for their hard work, without which the success of our company in the past financial year and in future 

years would not be possible. 

The management Board 

uwe Grimminger achim mansen

Foreword of the management Board



RepoRt of tHe supeRvisoRy BoARd 

ladies and Gentlemen, 

in the past 2005 financial year, Essanelle Hair Group aG succeeded in building on the pleasing performance seen 

in previous years. The supervisory Board assisted in these developments in accordance with its duties as a 

supervisory body and accompanied the management Board in an advisory capacity. in June 2005, the Chairman of 

the supervisory Board, Dr. Hans-Jürgen Knauer, retired from office for reasons of ill health. We should like to 

take this opportunity of thanking him for his longstanding activities on behalf of the company. He was at all times 

fully committed to the interests of the company. The same is true of paul Deiters, who also retired from his posi-

tion as representative of the then major shareholders. Joachim Dübner, who has long been familiar with the com-

pany, and Werner schneider, a specialist in personnel matters, were appointed as new members by court order. 

martin Tresser, who has been a member of the supervisory Board of the company since its stock market flotation, 

was elected as the new Chairman at the meeting of the supervisory Board held on 24.06.2005. He resigned as 

Chairman and member of the supervisory Board as of 11 april 2006. on 23.06.2005, the supervisory Board 

extended the management board contracts of messrs. Grimminger and mansen by three years up to 30.04.2009.

The members of the supervisory Board regularly attended the meetings of the Board whenever possible. in cases 

where this was not possible, the members in question mostly participated in the adoption of resolutions by cast-

ing their votes in writing. at the five meetings of the supervisory Board held on 05.04., 23.06., 24.06., 29.09. and 

30.11.2005, we discussed and analysed in great detail the strategy and overall situation of the company, as well 

as key operative transactions, both exclusively with the members of the supervisory Board and jointly with the 

management Board. The management Board provided us with extensive and prompt written and verbal informa-

tion for this purpose. The main topics included the risk management system of the Essanelle Hair Group and the 

buyback of its own shares. The buyback of own shares undertaken in october and november 2005 was primarily 

aimed at covering the risks resulting from the latest option programme adopted at the 2005 annual General 

meeting. 

Within the framework of its regular activities, the supervisory Board reviewed the monthly and quarterly figures 

presented to it. at the final meeting of the past financial year we discussed the budgets and objectives for 2006 

with the management Board, as well as the overall planning for the 2007 to 2009 financial years. outside the 

framework of meetings, the Chairman of the supervisory Board is also in regular contact with the management 

Board in order to exchange views as to major business events and the current economic and financial situation of 

the Essanelle Hair Group. measures not requiring our consent but nevertheless of major significance were also 

discussed in detail with the management Board. Examples of such measures include the decision to press ahead 
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This	colourful	and	provocative	hairstyle	worn	by	punks	 in	the	1980s	
shocked	 the	 middle	 classes	 in	 those	 days	 and	 is	 now	 witnessing	 a	
successful	comeback	among	both	men	and	women.	Fringy	short	hair-
cuts	are	styled	up	with	the	fingers	and	a	great	deal	of	gel	and	then	
fixed	in	place	with	hairspray.	The	punks	themselves	used	gelatine	and	
sugar	water.

brief guide to hairstyles

A	provocative	punk	hairstyle

styled upwards and fixed

¶ß

The 

Iroquois



At	the	beginning	of	the	1960s,	the	London	hairdresser	Vidal	Sassoon	
perfected	a	hairstyle	which	had	already	been	a	classic	among	fashio-
nable	hairstyles	since	the	days	of	ancient	Egypt	–	the	bob.	This	famous	
hairstyle	 involving	 chin-length	 hair,	 a	 round	 back	 and	 edgeless	 con-
tours	remains	one	of	the	top	favourites	in	the	hairdressing	charts.	The	
bob	forms	the	basis	for	many	modern	hairstyles,	with	variations	such	
as	layering	and	asymmetrical	or	overlong	pony	sections.

brief guide to hairstyles

Since	the	beginning	of	the	sixties

edgeless contours

¶ß

The 
Bob
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with the growth strategy once again in 2005, the related development of new salons and the launch and estab-

lishment of the new Top TEn salon brand. We also approved the company changing segment to the prime stand-

ard of the German stock Exchange. The management Board informed us regularly with regard to all of these mat-

ters. 

Together with the management Board, the supervisory Board submitted the company’s updated joint statement 

of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code in December. The company was in agreement that it should 

adopt the new recommendations included in the Code in full. in future, the company will also comply with further 

points contained in the old recommendations with which it did not comply in the past. The key points worthy of 

mention in this respect are: the establishment of committees (audit committee, personnel committee), the review 

of the effectiveness of supervisory board activities, the disclosure of conflicts of interest and the setting of an 

age limit for members of the supervisory Board. more detailed information has been provided in the Corporate 

Governance report. in view of the specific circumstances of Essanelle Hair Group aG, the management and 

supervisory Boards have also for good reason decided to continue not to comply with certain recommendations.  

The audit Committee and the personnel Committee were established at the september meeting and have since 

met on two occasions. The audit Committee has dealt with key points relating to the annual audit and the new 

iFrs valuation requirements. The meetings of the personnel Committee addressed amendments to the contracts 

of members of the management Board and the determining of bonuses. The remuneration of the management 

Board of Essanelle Hair Group aG consists of fixed and variable components. The variable remuneration is struc-

tured in line with medium and long-term incentive factors primarily based on the increase in the value of the 

company. 

The annual financial statements of Essanelle Hair Group aG compiled in accordance with the German Commer-

cial Code (HGB) and the consolidated financial statements, which have been compiled for the first time in accord-

ance with iFrs, as well as the combined management reports, have been audited by the auditing company pwC 

Deutsche revision aG, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Düsseldorf. Both sets of financial statements were 

granted unqualified audit opinions. These financial statements, the combined management reports and the audit 

reports compiled by the auditor were provided to all members of the supervisory Board and were discussed in 

detail in the presence of the auditor at the meeting of the supervisory Board held on 29.03.2006.

report of the supervisory Board 



on the basis of the extensive information provided by the auditor and of the results of the audit undertaken by 

the audit Committee, the supervisory Board did not see any grounds for discrepancies or any necessity to under-

take or commission any more far-reaching audit measures.

We audited the annual financial statements of Essanelle Hair Group aG and the consolidated financial state-

ments as of 31 December 2005, as well as the combined management reports of the company and the Group. We 

concurred with the results of the audit of the annual financial statements undertaken by the auditor and raised 

no objections. We approved the annual financial statements compiled by the management Board for Essanelle 

Hair Group aG and for the Group. The annual financial statements of Essanelle Hair Group aG are therefore 

adopted. We also endorse the statements made and the depiction of the situation of the company provided in the 

management reports.

Following several difficult years, Essanelle Hair Group aG now finds itself on a pleasing and sustainable course. 

This has only been possible as a result of the commitment and performance shown by all employees and by the 

management Board. The supervisory Board would like to take this opportunity of expressing its thanks and its 

acknowledgement of the successes achieved so far. 

martin Tresser

Chairman of the supervisory Board

Bericht des aufsichtsrates



”Short	at	the	front	and	long	at	the	back”	was	particularly	modern	in	
the	 1980s.	 Well-known	 mullet	 wearers	 included	 the	 pop	 star	 Nena,	
the	singer	Dieter	Bohlen	and	footballers	such	as	Rudi	Völler.	The	mul-
let	 is	 currently	 witnessing	 a	 revival	 and	 is	 conquering	 the	 fashion	
stages	in	its	new	version	with	a	short,	full	upper	body	of	hair	and	long	
hair	at	the	back	with	irregularly	cut	tips.

brief guide to hairstyles

Fashionable	hairstyle	from	the	eighties

Revival of a 
scene hairstyle

∫¢

The 
mullet



CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe

CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe in 2005

in 2005, Essanelle Hair Group aG continued to implement the regulations and recommendations of high-quality 

corporate governance at the company in the interests of ensuring a high standard of transparency and of achiev-

ing corresponding improvements in the management of the company. a retrospective analysis of corporate gov-

ernance revealed that in 2005 the company met all of the points not excluded in the statement of Compliance 

dated December 2004. all deviations from the code still valid are listed in the statement of Compliance below. 

The Essanelle Hair Group endorses the objectives of the German Corporate Governance Code with regard to effi-

cient company management, transparent information policies for shareholders and the increase in the value of 

the company in the long term.  

sHAReHoldeRs And AnnuAl geneRAl Meeting 

as usual, in the run-up to the annual General meeting of Essanelle Hair Group aG on 24 June 2005, all major 

documents, such as the agenda and information concerning voting proxies, could be viewed on the internet and 

downloaded. Following the annual General meeting, the speech and presentation made by the Chairman of the 

management Board, uwe Grimminger, were available, as was press information. 

MAnAgeMent BoARd And supeRvisoRy BoARd 

as recommended in the Corporate Governance Code, the supervisory Board of Essanelle Hair Group aG estab-

lished an audit Committee in 2005. This is chaired by Joachim Dübner, a member of the supervisory Board. Fur-

thermore, a personnel Committee was also established. This committee is chaired by the Chairman of the super-

visory Board. relevant specialist topics were referred by the supervisory Board to these committees, in some 

cases for discussion, in others for the drafting of resolutions and in yet others for the adoption of a corresponding 

resolution. 

The requirement set out in the Corporate Governance Code that the effectiveness of the activities of the supervi-

sory Board be subject to review was also complied with for the first time. This review was undertaken in the con-

text of an anonymous self-assessment in which the auditor was also involved. The results were evaluated and 

provided to all members of the supervisory and management Boards. suggestions and proposed improvements 

were discussed and then implemented as far as possible.



16 / 17

in June 2005, the then Chairman of the supervisory Board, Dr. Hans-Jürgen Knauer, retired from the supervisory 

Board of the company for reasons of ill health. paul Deiters also retired from the supervisory Board. Joachim 

Dübner, who has long been familiar with the company, and Werner schneider, a specialist in personnel matters, 

were appointed as new members by court order. martin Tresser, who has been a member of the supervisory 

Board of the company since its stock market flotation, was elected as the new Chairman at the meeting of the 

supervisory Board held on 24.06.2005. 

The restructuring of the supervisory Board was taken as an opportunity for disclosing potential conflicts of inter-

ests on the part of all members of the supervisory Board and for dealing with these at a meeting of the entire 

Board. The concluding assessment found there to be no truly grave conflicts of interest and that the members 

were in a position to perform their duties with the necessary autonomy.

ReMuneRAtion of tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd

no changes were made to the system for remunerating the management Board during the 2005 financial year. 

The basic features of this system have been depicted on page 97 of the notes to the consolidated financial 

statements. 

ReMuneRAtion of tHe supeRvisoRy BoARd  Euro

martin Tresser (Chairman from 24.06.05) 25,000.00

peter m. Herold (Deputy Chairman)  15,000.00

michael Eberhard, Gabriele Eick, Dr. Gabriele Fontane,

Cornelia Glaß, Jürgen Tröndle, ulrike Witt 10,000.00 each

Joachim Dübner (from 15.06.05) 5,416.66

Werner schneider (from 24.06.05) 5,000.00

Dieter Bonk (from 30.11.05) 833.34

Dr. Hans-Jürgen Knauer (Chairman until 24.06.05)  20,000.00

paul Deiters (until 07.06.05) 3,110.20

ulrike muschalle (until 31.10.05) 8,333.34

marina schacht (until 31.07.05) 5,000.00

Corporate governance



tRAnspARenCy

as stipulated in the investor protection improvement act from 2004, Essanelle Hair Group aG has taken all meas-

ures required for it to fulfil its obligations in the areas of ad-hoc publication obligations, insider registers and 

directors’ dealings. all areas are regularly updated and reviewed. Five ad-hoc announcements were published in 

2005. moreover, in line with legal stipulations and the requirements of the prime standard of the German stock 

Exchange, Essanelle Hair Group aG has since the past financial year compiled its financial statements in accord-

ance with iFrs accounting standards.

option pRogRAMMe 

in line with the resolution passed by the annual General meeting on 24.06.2005, the management Board has 

been authorised up to the annual General meeting in 2008 to issue subscription rights as variable salary compo-

nents. The subscription rights may be exercised at the earliest two years following their subscription. The exer-

cising of the subscription rights is linked to the performance of the company’s share both in absolute terms and in 

relation to the performance of the sDaX. 
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diReCtoRs’ deAlings in 2005:

(publication pursuant to point 6.6 of the German Corporate Governance Code)

diReCtoRs’ deAlings 01.01.2005 – 31.12.2005

date  23.0�.05 10.10.05 16.12.05 20.12.05

name  uwe Grimminger uwe Grimminger uwe Grimminger Dieter Bonk

position mB mB mB sB

Transaction sale sale sale sale

Exchange off-market off-market off-market Xetra

number 14,000 50,000 30,000 1,500

price (Eur) 7.95 8.00 8.34 8.20

Volume (Eur) 111,300 400,000 250,200 12,300

diReCtoRs’ Holdings (as of 31.12.2005)

management Board

shares: uwe Grimminger 256,131 shares (5.69%), achim mansen 44,980 shares (1%)

options: uwe Grimminger 29,757 options, achim mansen 19,838 options

supervisory Board

shares: Jürgen Tröndle 155,750 shares (3.46%), Gabriele Eick 600 shares, Dr. Gabriele Fontane 100 shares

Corporate governance



stAteMent of CoMpliAnCe witH tHe geRMAn CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe Code 

By tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd And supeRvisoRy BoARd of essAnelle HAiR gRoup Ag 

pursuant to section 161 of the German stock Corporation act (aktG) 

The management Board and supervisory Board of Essanelle Hair Group aG endorse the suggestions and rules 

contained in the German Corporate Governance Code. They fulfilled the recommendations contained therein in 

the past financial year and will continue to do so in future. Deviations from the Code have been disclosed by the 

Board of management and supervisory Board below. 

additions during the past 2005 financial year: 

5.3.2 in line with the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Code, the supervisory Board of Essanelle 

Hair Group aG last year established a personnel Committee and an audit Committee – with the remits rec-

ommended in the Code. 

5.4.1 The Essanelle Hair Group resolved during the 2005 financial year to comply with point 5.4.1 and thus to fol-

low the recommendation that an age limit be set. 

Deviations still valid: 

3.8 The D&o insurance policy established by the company for the management Board and the supervisory 

Board did not include any deductible for the members thereby insured in the past and will not do so in 

future. 

4.2.3 Variable remuneration components of a long-term incentive nature have been in place since 2003. However, 

the balanced structure of the parameters to be achieved makes any cap redundant. moreover, the low vol-

ume of share options means that no detailed publication is required on the homepage.  
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4.2.4 The remuneration of members of the management Board will continue to be reported as an overall sum in 

the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

5.4.7 The members of the supervisory Board will continue only to receive fixed remuneration in view of the fact 

that the current level of remuneration means that it is not expedient to divide such remuneration into fixed 

and variable components.

7.1.1 accounting 

 Essanelle Hair Group aG provided comprehensive and regular information in the form of annual and interim 

financial statements compiled in accordance with the German Commercial Code (HGB). in line with legal 

stipulations and the Code, the company will compile its annual financial statements for the 2005 financial 

year in accordance with the requirements of iFrs. 

7.1.2 The Essanelle Hair Group will in future continue to compile its consolidated financial statements within 90 

days and its quarterly financial statements within 45 days and to publish them at the earliest possible date. 

These deadlines may be exceeded in individual cases.

Düsseldorf, 22.12.2005

The management Board                                        The supervisory Board 

Corporate governance



tHe sHARe

The share of Essanelle Hair Group aG began the 2005 financial year at a price of Euro 4.35. in the course of the 

year, the price rose by a total of around 89%, to Euro 8.20 by the end of the year and thus considerably outper-

forming the increase of 35.16% reported by the sDaX index. This pleasing development in the share price is pri-

marily attributable to the positive business performance of the Essanelle Hair Group. moreover, further measures 

have also boosted shareholders’ confidence in the share. The company was admitted to the prime standard qual-

ity segment of the German stock Exchange on 15 september, for example. By meeting the related increase in 

transparency and information disclosure obligations, the Essanelle Hair Group has on the one hand thus account-

ed for the considerable increase in its free float and resultant expansion in its circle of shareholders in 2005. on 

the other hand, the company hopes that this move will enable it to access further private and institutional inves-

tors. 

The fact that the company always accords high priority to its dialogue with shareholders was also illustrated by 

this year’s annual General meeting. in its presentation, the management Board outlined the business perform-

ance in 2004 and provided information concerning the 2005 financial year. in return, shareholders demonstrated 

their satisfaction with the key figures for 2004 and with the future prospects of the Essanelle Hair Group. as a 

result, the annual General meeting approved all of the items on the agenda with large majorities, thus affirming 

the successful course taken by the management Board. 

The financial community also responded positively to the past financial year. it was possible, for example, to 

attract well-known funds as new shareholders and to achieve a significant increase in the free float to around 

66% after the previous largest single shareholder in the Essanelle Hair Group, the investment company Halder, 

had replaced its shareholding of around 36%. moreover, analysts also showed increasing interest in the compa-

ny. The recommendations made in the context of three studies were in each case “Buy”. 
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sHAReHoldeR stRuCtuRe 

management Board 6.7%

Klier GmbH 25.8%

Free float pursuant to Deutsche Börse 67.5%

of which:

dit Vermögensverwaltung 8.9%

axxion sa 13.2%

Fpm  9.4%

other  36.0%

sHARe infoRMAtion 

overall year 2005

annual high Euro 8.78

annual low Euro 4.35

performance 01.01. - 31.12. +88.51%

sDaX  +35.16%

price at 31.12. Euro 8.20

market capitalisation at 31.12. Euro 36.90 million 

market capitalisation of free float at 31.12. Euro 24.43 million

The share



ConsoliDaTED FinanCial sTaTEmEnTs

gRoup MAnAgeMent RepoRt (ifRs) foR tHe 2005 finAnCiAl yeAR

eConoMiC fRAMewoRk 

The German economy showed a slight overall improvement in 2005. Based on figures published by the Federal 

statistics office, the country’s gross domestic product (GDp) rose by 0.9 percent. as in previous years, however, 

this increase was almost exclusively attributable to the momentum in the export sector, which reported growth of 

6.2%. By contrast, consumer spending, which is of key relevance to the retail sector and thus to the hairdressing 

services segment as well, remained weak. With a decline of 0.3% consumer spending once again developed neg-

atively. Key factors in this development included the sharp rise in oil and energy prices, as well as the situation 

on the employment market remaining tense. 

in comparison with European countries, Germany also hardly managed to leave the weak position it has held in 

recent years. only italy (+0.2%), portugal (+0.4%) and the netherlands (+0.5%) reported lower levels of economic 

growth. average growth in the Euro zone amounted to 1.3% in 2005 (previous year: 2.0%). 

leading research institutes have forecast a slight economic recovery for Germany in 2006. The Federal Govern-

ment expects the economy to grow by around 1.4%. The research institutes expect to see a slight improvement in 

consumer spending and have forecast growth of 1.5% to 2.0% for 2006.

The same cautious optimism can be found in the results of studies undertaken by the Company for Consumer 

research (GfK), which showed an improvement in the consumer climate in Germany at the end of 2005 – even 

though overall growth levels stagnated. The “propensity to spend” measured by the GfK, for example, was posi-

tive for the first time since 2001. The trend may well continue, but, as in the past, its impact on the retail sector, 

in which Essanelle Hair Group aG operates, remains surrounded by numerous uncertainties. 
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seCtoR developMent 

Based on representative data compiled by the Company for Consumer research (GfK), there was an increase in 

the trend towards visiting hairdressing salons in 2005. While around 60% of the individuals questioned in the 

previous year usually had their hair treated in a salon, this figure rose to 62% in 2005. This development was 

observed across all age groups. older consumers are traditionally more likely to go to the hairdresser than young-

er ones. Between 64% and 69% of consumers in the age groups from 50 and upwards frequented hairdressing 

salons. There was an increase once again in the percentage of men using hairdressing salons in 2005. in the past 

year, the percentage of men going to the hairdressers returned to 59%, while only 57% had done so in 2004. The 

share of the female target group visiting a hairdressing salon, by contrast, remained constant at the same high 

figure of 64% seen in the previous year. 

The frequency of visits to hairdressers also remained virtually unchanged in the course of the year. While fre-

quency rates averaged 6.0 visits per year for both sexes in 2004, the equivalent figure in the past year was 5.9. 

on average, men had their hair cut and treated at a hairdressing salon 6.7 times per year (previous year: 6.9) and 

women 5.4 times per year (previous year: 5.5). in this respect, a total of 80% of both target groups always chose 

the same hairdressing salon (previous year: 81%). 17% (previous year: 15%) tried out a different salon on occa-

sion. This trend towards switching hairdressers or spontaneously deciding to visit another salon, which has been 

growing in significance for years now, is advantageous for the Essanelle Hair Group, given that the large majority 

of its proprietary salons are to be found at locations with high numbers of walk-in customers. it can also be 

observed that younger target groups, with rates of more than 20% in each case, are more likely to switch hair-

dressers or to spontaneously decide to visit a different salon on occasion, while customers over 50 generally 

remain regular customers at the same salon. 

regardless of the choice of hairdresser, there was a decline in average expenditure (including product purchases) 

per visit to the hairdresser in 2005. men saved 4.2% compared with the previous year, spending Euro 15.40 per 

visit (previous year: Euro 16.08), while women spent Euro 42.20 per visit to the hairdresser, 1.7% less than in the 

previous year (Euro 42.95). a total of 16% of customers questioned purchased exclusive hairdressing products 

regularly or on occasion (previous year: 18%). as might possibly be expected, the share of women making such 

purchases was higher than the equivalent figure for men. Customers’ satisfaction with their hairdresser remained 

unchanged at a very high level. as in the previous year, 96% of the customers questioned stated that they were 

“very satisfied” or “satisfied”. 

management report



geneRAl infoRMAtion ABout tHe CoMpAny 

tHe CoMpAny

The Essanelle Hair Group provides hairdressing services and exclusive hairdressing products at around 600 salons 

and outlets across the whole of Germany. The services and products are offered via the retail concepts essanelle 

– ihr Friseur, super Cut, HairExpress, Top TEn and Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle, as well as via the franchise 

salons operating under the mod’s hair brand. The individual concepts are directed in each case at clearly defined 

target groups determined on the basis of various criteria. The sole purpose of the Beauty Hair shops is that of 

selling exclusive hairdressing articles. The mod’s hair retail concept is managed via the 100% shareholding held 

in CFs Coiffure Franchising system GmbH. This company manages 45 mod´s hair franchise salons. Based on the 

data compiled by the Company for Consumer research (GfK), the Essanelle Hair Group estimates that its consoli-

dated sales of Euro 113.5 million and Group sales of Euro 129.8 million represented a market share of around 2% 

in Germany in 2005. 

as of 31.12.2005, the consolidated Essanelle Hair Group had 3,852 employees, compared with 3,812 in the previ-

ous year. of this total, 81 individuals were employed in the company’s head office and sales force and 3,771 in 

the salons. as customary in the segment, part-time employees made up 36% of the workforce.

stRAtegy And ConCepts

The market for hairdressing services is highly fragmented. more than 90% of the hairdressing salons in Germany 

are managed by their proprietors. in view of the size of the company, its financial and personnel resources and its 

strategic alignment, Essanelle Hair Group aG therefore occupies a special position. only one other competitor 

has achieved a comparable position in the market. 
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The company exploits this potential by focusing its offerings on specific target groups. The various salon groups 

are targeted at particular groups within society, thus meeting homogeneous customer requirements. The 

essanelle – ihr Friseur concept, which has enjoyed longstanding success in the market and is targeted at the 

entire family, is worthy of particular mention in this respect. Furthermore, the strategy of the company has a 

strong focus on young consumers and on price-sensitive customers, given that the management believes that 

these groups harbour the greatest potential for the Essanelle Hair Group aG hairdressing chain. as a result of its 

cost structures, the company is in a position to operate low-price concepts profitably and thus simultaneously to 

access consumers who have increasingly not had their hair cut at salons in recent years. The super Cut and 

HairExpress concepts, which are aimed at both of these trends, reported the highest growth rates in the past 

years. The Top TEn salon concept newly launched in 2005 is also intended to raise access levels to the two spe-

cific target groups of “young customers” and “price-sensitive customers” referred to above. 

The selection of locations for the new salons plays a major strategic role. Essanelle Hair Group aG prefers loca-

tions within shopping centres, consumer markets and department stores. Thanks to its longstanding partnerships 

with the leading providers of these centres, the company has succeeded in expanding its salon network on an 

ongoing basis. These environments have a high frequency of customers, passers-by and visitors, thus providing 

corresponding potential for the salons. The salon concepts are selected in line with the respective environment. 

a further pillar of the company’s strategy is the sale of exclusive hairdressing products at the salons and at the 

Beauty Hair shops. in this respect, Essanelle Hair Group aG is able to rely on benefits of scale in its procurement 

and its specially trained staff to raise its sales far above segment averages. The Beauty Hair shops, which have 

been specially designed for sales purposes, enable product sales to be boosted outside the hairdressing salons. 

overall, the company generally generates a higher margin from the sale of exclusive hairdressing products than 

from its services. This division is therefore of strategic significance. 



Business peRfoRMAnCe of tHe ConsolidAted essAnelle HAiR gRoup

oBjeCtives of tHe pAst finAnCiAl yeAR 

at the beginning of 2005, the Essanelle Hair Group placed its strategy on a clear growth course. The aim was to 

open 20 to 30 new salons, primarily involving concepts targeted at young and price-sensitive customers. This 

would involve an increase in sales with a simultaneous negative impact on earnings as a result of the start-up 

losses incurred for new salons. Based on the scheduled implementation of the growth strategy, the company 

expected to generate pre-tax earnings at the same level as in the previous year. an EBT figure of between Euro 

1.8 million and Euro 2.3 million was targeted. in parallel to this, the company aimed to achieve a further reduc-

tion in its liabilities and to increase its equity ratio to at least 30%.  

Business peRfoRMAnCe in 2005

The Essanelle Hair Group basically implemented its growth course in 2005. However, the company only opened a 

moderate number of new salons. This resulted in a weaker sales performance than planned, not least because 

salon closures also had to be compensated for. on the other hand, the lower number of salon openings, most of 

which were opened in the second half of the year, also resulted in a lower level of start-up losses, which meant 

that the earnings performance was better than expected. overall, these factors have resulted in a partial post-

ponement of the budgeted impact on sales and earnings to the 2006 financial year. as planned, the company will 

press ahead with its expansion in the current financial year. pleasing performance figures have been reported for 

the newly established Top TEn salon concept, which is targeted at both young and price-sensitive customers.  

The Essanelle Hair Group generated total consolidated sales of Euro 113.5 million, compared with Euro 114.7 mil-

lion in the previous year. This decline in sales is attributable to subdued levels of consumer demand, the closure 

of unprofitable salons and also to the spin-off of the final mod’s hair salons in 2004, which had contributed Euro 

400,000 to the sales figures for that year. The majority of the 36 newly opened salons were not yet able to make 

any significant contribution to the overall sales performance. Group sales, which also include the sales reported 

by the franchisees, amounted to Euro 129.8 million in 2005, compared with Euro 131.1 million in the previous 

year. sales at the franchise salons correspondingly amounted to around Euro 16.3 million, compared with Euro 

16.4 million in 2004.
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The consolidated sales of Essanelle Hair Group aG are dominated by services, which generated sales of Euro 

95.9 million. This is equivalent to 84% of total sales. as in previous years, there was an increase in the sales 

generated by the sale of exclusive hairdressing products. These rose by 3.7% to Euro 16.9 million in the 2005 

financial year, thus attaining a 15% share of sales. Franchising revenues amounted to Euro 0.7 million, or 1% of 

sales. 

The number of salons operated by the company rose from 575 in 2004 to 594 as of 31.12.2005. This increase 

accounts for the opening of a total of 36 new salons and the closure of 17 salons. The number of employees rose 

from 3,812 at the end of the 2004 financial year to a total of 3,852 at the end of the past financial year. of this 

total, 3,771 individuals were employed at the salons and 81 in overhead functions.  

peRfoRMAnCe of tHe sAlon ConCepts 

essanelle – ihr Friseur is the classic concept and by far the largest concept operated by the company. it is target-

ed at all age groups in most cases in shopping centres and department stores. With sales of Euro 71.8 million 

(previous year: Euro 74.3 million) the concept generated 63.3% of total sales (2004: 64.8%). at 347, the number 

of salons remained unchanged on the previous year. 

The super Cut concept is aimed at a young, trend-conscious target group. uncomplicated and personal, with 

familiar forms of address and up-to-date music, the salons represent an environment suitable to attracting cus-

tomers who are young or young-at-heart. The sales of super Cut rose by 3.9% in 2005 to reach Euro 18.5 million 

(2004: Euro 17.8 million). The number of salons rose from 74 in 2004 to 79 at the end of the past financial year.

The Top TEn concept newly launched in summer 2005 is located in the lower price segment and targeted at a 

price-sensitive customer group which it has not yet been possible to access with the HairExpress concept. more-

over, with its workshop character and the latest hits from the top ten in the music charts, the concept also 

addresses a young public. The new concept is also characterised by a price of Euro 10 for each service. Top TEn 

generated sales of Euro 0.3 million in the past financial year and had a total of 5 salons by the end of 2005.  

HairExpress also achieved growth in 2005 in spite of the new Top TEn concept. With its focus on price-sensitive 

customers, this concept provides unadulterated, professional core services. its sales amounted to Euro 13.7  

million in the past financial year (previous year: Euro 13.1 million), which is equivalent to growth of 4.6%. The 

number of salons rose from 77 to 81.
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Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle is the exclusive concept offered by Essanelle Hair Group aG and is to be found at 

superb locations, such as the exclusive Berlin department store KaDeWe, the newly opened alsterhaus in Ham-

burg or on the Königsallee in Düsseldorf. This salon brand provides high-quality services to a sophisticated busi-

ness public. its sales amounted to Euro 5.1 million in the 2005 financial year, compared with Euro 5.5 million in 

the previous year. at 16, the number of salons was reduced by one compared with the previous year.  

mod’s hair is the company’s franchise concept. its parisian flair and elaborate fittings are aimed at an exquisite, 

fashion-conscious target group. Franchise revenues amounted to Euro 0.9 million in the past financial year (previ-

ous year: Euro 1.4 million). 

The Essanelle Hair Group does not only offer its traditional services. The company also offers products exclusive 

to hairdressers at the salons and at its Beauty Hair shops, of which there are now 21. These products include 

system professional and High Hair from Wella, redken from l’oréal, as well as products offered under the com-

pany’s private label Keranelle. although the Beauty Hair shops are located in close proximity to the salons, the 

intention is nevertheless to motivate customers to buy the products not only when they visit the hairdresser. The 

Beauty Hair shops generated revenues totalling Euro 3.2 million in the 2005 financial year, an increase of 23.1% 

on the previous year (Euro 2.6 million). The number of Beauty Hair shops has increased from 15 to 21. 

developMent of expenses And eARnings 

in spite of the expansion, a rise in the number of salons and the resultant increase in the number of employees, 

Essanelle Hair Group aG nevertheless succeeded in reducing key expense items. personnel expenses declined 

from Euro 64.4 million to Euro 63.3 million. The personnel expense ratio now amounts to around 56%. only mate-

rial expenses showed a slight increase from Euro 10.4 million to Euro 10.5 million. other operating expenses, 

including rental expenses, also showed a slight decline from Euro 31.2 million to Euro 31.0 million. The Essanelle 

Hair Group therefore generated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBiTDa) calculat-

ed in line with iFrs of around Euro 10.1 million. EBiTDa was thus at exactly the same level as in the previous 

year in spite of the marked growth in the number of salons. 

There was a marked decline in the level of depreciation, which fell by almost 10% from Euro 5.2 million to Euro 4.7 

million in the past financial year. pursuant to iFrs, this item almost exclusively includes depreciation of property, 

plant and equipment, as well as an exceptional write-down of goodwill in the brand Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle 

required as a result of an impairment test. This item thus differs considerably from that included in the calculation 

of the 2004 earnings in line with the German Commercial Code (HGB), which had included additional goodwill 

write-downs of around Euro 2 million. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBiT) calculated in line with iFrs there-

fore showed an overall increase of around 10% to Euro 5.4 million, compared with Euro 4.9 million in 2004.  



as a result of the reduction in liabilities in 2004, the net financial expenses of the Essanelle Hair Group were sig-

nificantly more positive in the 2005 financial year. net financial expenses thus improved from Euro -1.35 million 

to Euro -1.05 million. This led to earnings before taxes of Euro 4.3 million, compared with Euro 3.5 million in the 

previous year. Given that the amortisation of goodwill was not required, earnings before taxes calculated in line 

with iFrs are considerably higher than this year’s pre-tax earnings based on the German Commercial Code (HGB), 

which amount to Euro 2.6 million. 

The share of earnings resulting from the goodwill amortisation not being undertaken is subject to fictitious taxa-

tion pursuant to iFrs. moreover, in contrast to HGB accounting requirements, iFrs do not permit the company to 

utilise its losses carried forward. overall, iFrs therefore result in an absolute level of taxation which is consider-

ably higher than the taxes actually paid, which are calculated in line with HGB. pursuant to iFrs, tax expenses 

amounted to Euro 1.8 million, compared with Euro 1.5 million in 2004. pursuant to HGB, however, the tax burden 

based on pre-tax earnings of Euro 2.6 million only amounted to Euro 0.3 million.  

in line with iFrs, the company generated annual net income of Euro 2.6 million. The equivalent figure for the pre-

vious year was Euro 2.0 million. This is equivalent to earnings growth of around 30%. Earnings per share there-

fore amounted to Euro 0.57, compared with Euro 0.45 in 2004. Excluding the fictitious taxation of earnings, earn-

ings per share would amount to Euro 0.90, compared with Euro 0.73 in the previous year.

Asset And finAnCiAl position 

The cash flow of the Essanelle Hair Group once again attained its usual strong level in the 2005 financial year. 

The net inflow of funds from operating activities showed a considerable increase from around Euro 6.2 million in 

2004 to now Euro 10.4 million. This is partly a direct result of the pleasing course of business and of the result-

ant annual net income, as well as of the change in working capital. as a result of the implementation of the 

expansion strategy, the cash flow from investment activities rose considerably from Euro -1.5 million to Euro -4.7 

million. The repayment of numerous liabilities resulted in a cash flow from financing activities of Euro -6.8 mil-

lion, compared with Euro -8.5 million in the previous year. overall, the change in financial funds therefore 

amounted to around Euro -1.1 million. Given a volume of Euro 5.1 million at the beginning of the year, liquid funds 

therefore now amount to Euro 4.0 million. 

Essanelle Hair Group aG also achieved further improvements in its balance sheet ratios in 2005. The company’s 

equity ratio based on iFrs rose from 35.2% as of 31.12.2004 to around 40.9% as of 31.12.2005. This extremely 

positive development, which far exceeded the company’s targets, is attributable on the one hand to the further 
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reduction in liabilities by more than Euro 4 million from Euro 34.3 million to Euro 30.2 million. on the other hand, 

the consolidated net income facilitated an improvement in shareholders’ equity from Euro 18.6 million to Euro 

20.8 million. on the asset side, fixed assets amounted to Euro 39.6 million and were thus at around the same 

level as the figure of Euro 40.3 million reported at the end of the previous year. Current assets declined from Euro 

12.6 million to Euro 11.4 million, which is largely due the reduction in cash holdings from Euro 5.1 million to Euro 

4.0 million. 

as planned, there was a considerable increase in investments in property, plant and equipment in 2005. These 

amounted to Euro 5.2 million, compared with Euro 2.9 million in 2004. The company invested around Euro 1.8 mil-

lion in the 36 newly opened salons and the new Top TEn salon concept. renovations of existing salons were 

financed with Euro 1.8 million. a further Euro 1.2 million related to financial leasing and Euro 0.4 million to other 

investments. 

tHe sHARe

The performance of the share of Essanelle Hair Group aG exceeded that of all of the main indices on the German 

stock Exchange in the 2005 financial year. Having started the year with a Xetra price of Euro 4.35, the company’s 

share finished the year with a price of Euro 8.20 as of 31.12.2005. This represents an increase in value of around 

89%. The value of the company calculated on this basis for 4.5 million shares thus amounted to Euro 36.9 million 

at the end of the past financial year. To take due account of the increase in the free float and thus also in the 

company’s circle of investors, the management decided in the 2005 financial year to switch to the prime standard 

of the German stock Exchange and to meet the high information disclosure requirements of this segment. These 

requirements include both the provision of reports in English and of more extensive reports on the respective 

quarterly results. 

on 20 october 2005, the management Board decided to buy back up to 10% of the outstanding shares via the 

stock exchange. This decision was based on the authorisation provided by the annual General meeting held on 

25 June 2004. The share buyback was undertaken within the framework of the authorisation in order to cover 

price risks relating to the existing share option programme in particular. The buyback was undertaken in agree-

ment with the requirements of regulation (EC) no. 2273/2003 of the Commission dated 22 December 2003. The 

company purchased a total of 60,000 of its own shares in the period between 28 october and 10 november 2005. 

During the year under report, the company issued 138,072 subscription rights to senior employees and the man-

agement Board within the framework of the share option programme. Following a lock-up period, these rights 

entitle their holders to subscribe shares. Further details have been provided in the notes to the financial state-

ments. 



Risk RepoRt

eARly identifiCAtion 

The Essanelle Hair Group has already had an early warning risk identification system pursuant to section 91 (2) 

of the German stock Corporation act (aktG) in place for several years now. This system is regularly adjusted to 

account for changes in the company and encompasses all divisions of the company and its subsidiaries. a hand-

book sets out the respective functionalities, responsibilities, reporting requirements and possible controls and 

determines the corresponding handling of the information from the early warning risk identification system. 

The management has commissioned decentralised risk managers to monitor the implementation of these meas-

ures. The risks within the respective areas of responsibility are recorded in a regularly updated inventory and 

reported to the central risk controller at intervals of three months. Following an in-depth review, the risk control-

ler then informs the management Board. The management Board in turn informs the supervisory Board of major 

risks at its regular meetings.

ContRolling At tHe sAlons 

To facilitate the management of the company, controlling structures are in place at the salons, enabling prompt 

analyses to be compiled and targets and measures to be set. Weekly and monthly budget/actual comparisons 

and analyses are compiled at this level and forwarded to the management Board. in view of the forthcoming 

future expansion in the number of salons, the controlling system will act as an important aid enabling the per-

formance of the individual new salons to be assessed at all times. 

MARket Risk

The salons of the Essanelle Hair Group are in most cases located in department stores, consumer markets and 

shopping centres. This means that they are particularly dependent on the respective overall location, its consum-

er structure, totals and behaviour. as a result of its in-depth review and selection of highly-frequented locations, 

the company views its locations and the fundamental decision in favour of locations in such centres as constitut-

ing an advantage. as in previous years, the company’s management still believes these criteria to be valid. There 

is nevertheless the risk that individual cooperation partners could close down outlets, thus forcing the company 

to relinquish a particular location. 
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irrespective of the location issue, the development of hairdressing services depends to a certain extent on the 

overall development of the retail sector. on the basis of all previous experience, however, developments in the 

overall retail sector are only passed on in diluted form. The ongoing lull in consumer confidence, which has now 

lasted since 2001, is correspondingly also reflected in the sales of the company’s salons. The Essanelle Hair 

Group has countered this trend by developing and expanding suitable salon concepts. The Top TEn salon brand 

newly established in 2005 is thus directed at the target groups of price-sensitive customers and of young people, 

a group which is relatively immune to developments in the economic cycle. 

all data available at the individual salons is recorded and analysed in order to identify any additional individual 

risks or inappropriate developments at an early stage and, if necessary, to take countermeasures. a total of 38 

salons for which no possibility of achieving profitability improvements in the medium term was expected were 

thus closed in the past two years. 

RentAl 

The Essanelle Hair Group has concluded long-term rental agreements with a large number of letting partners. 

Contracts for several locations have been concluded with some partners. if the lessor accords priority to hair-

dressing services being offered at weak locations as well, then it is in some cases not possible to close salons in 

spite of their failing to reach the profitability requirements of the Essanelle Hair Group. From a current perspec-

tive, however, the number of profitable salons is in the clear majority in the case of these partners. moreover, the 

long-term nature of the agreements protects the company against the risk of losing particularly good and highly 

sought-after locations. The relationships with the letting partners, which are in most cases longstanding and 

good, provide additional security. Furthermore, the Essanelle Hair Group is making efforts to optimise its mix of 

lessors to the greatest possible extent. 

supplieRs

Contracts involving exclusive hairdressing product acceptance obligations running over several years have been 

concluded with two major suppliers of the Essanelle Hair Group. The company currently expects to meet the 

agreed acceptance obligations. 



peRsonnel

Hairdressing services are an extremely personnel-intensive business. Functioning relationships between custom-

ers and employees are of decisive importance for the success of the Essanelle Hair Group. in view of this, the 

company accords a high degree of attention to the motivation and further training of its employees. moreover, 

detailed analyses of personnel productivity, turnover and development levels are compiled and evaluated on a 

regular basis. The exchange of information between the management Board and the regional sales directors, as 

well as that between the latter and the employees on location, provides an additional communication and infor-

mation system which facilitates the monitoring of this critical factor in the hairdressing service segment.  

over and above the risks outlined above, no particular risks to the future development of the company have cur-

rently been identified.

events suBsequent to tHe RepoRting dAte 

There have been no events with a significant impact on the sales and earnings situation of the Essanelle Hair 

Group aG subsequent to the reporting date on 31.12.2005. 

outlook 

The leading economic research institutes expect to see an improvement in the performance of the German econo-

my in the current 2006 financial year. This is also expected to involve renewed growth in domestic demand fol-

lowing years of weak development. overall, GDp growth of between 1.5% and 2% has been forecast. should this 

be the case, and should a significant portion of such growth be attributable to consumer demand, then this could 

also have a positive impact on the business performance of Essanelle Hair Group aG. 
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in order to be independent of this development, which is still uncertain, the company will maintain the growth 

course initiated in 2005 in the 2006 financial year as well. it aims to open around 50 new salons, primarily involv-

ing the Top TEn and super Cut concepts. The acceleration in the growth in the number of salons, and thus of the 

company, will be facilitated in part by the regular high operating cash flow of Essanelle Hair Group aG, which 

amounted to more than Euro 10 million in the 2005 financial year. This level is also forecast for 2006. should the 

expansion be implemented on schedule, then the company expects to achieve sales growth of 5% to 10%. a par-

ticular contribution will be made in this respect by the salons already opened in the past financial year.  

on the earnings side, the annual net income reported by Essanelle Hair Group aG for the past financial year was 

in excess of expectations. This was primarily attributable to the new openings in 2005 taking place later than 

planned. This means that the resultant start-up losses were partly no longer incurred in the 2005 financial year, 

but have rather been postponed to the current financial year. For this reason, the company does not expect to 

achieve significant earnings growth in 2006. its target for 2006 is at least to match the earnings before taxes 

reported for the 2005 financial year. in 2007, the Essanelle Hair Group will then profit even more substantially 

from the growth in the total number of salons, given that new salons generally work at full capacity following 

one year and can then make maximum contributions to sales and earnings. as a result of the salons opened in 

2005 and 2006, the Essanelle Hair Group expects earnings to rise as a proportion of sales in the 2007 financial 

year. The 2005 and 2006 financial years thus form the foundation for ongoing future sales and earnings growth. 

The expansion plans focus in particular on the newly established Top TEn concept. With this concept, the com-

pany aims on the one hand to attract young customers by means of “cool” furnishings and music taken exclusive-

ly from the top ten in the German charts. on the other hand, it aims to appeal to price-sensitive customers as a 

result of its consistent basic price of ten euros. The first salons opened in 2005 have performed better than 

expected. This positive performance should also be maintained in 2006 and in subsequent years.  



ConsolidAted BAlAnCe sHeet (ifRs) 
as of 31 december 2005

 
Assets

€	 	 	 Note	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004	

 

assETs

	 Fixed	assets

 property. plant and equipment 6 19,803,198.26 19,520,628.50

 Goodwill 7 19,243,872.10 19,651,238.35

 other intangible assets 7 204,967.52 184,951.59

 Financial assets valued at equity 8 1.00 7,000.00

 other loans 9 336,483.80 535,143.03

 Deferred tax claims 18 0.00 395,000.00

    39,588,522.68	 40,293,961.47

 Current	assets

 inventories 10 5,838,391.02 5,826,725.87

 accounts receivable 11 327,520.14 248,547.16

 other assets 12 1,204,502.67 1,425,168.75

 Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,023,586.86 5,112,518.48

	 	 	 	 11,394,000.69	 12,612,960.26

Total	assets	 	 50,982,523.37	 52,906,921.73
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liABilities
	 	 	 	

€	 	 	 Note	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 

sHarEHolDErs’ EQuiTy

	 Capital	and	reserves	allocable	to	the

	 shareholders	in	the	parent	company

 share capital 14 4,440,000.00 4,500,000.00

 Capital reserve 15 14,922,074.35 15,214,773.20

 revenue reserves 16 1,465,846.08 -1,107,337.24

 	 	 	 20,827,920.43	 18,607,435.96

	 DEBT

	 Long-term	debt

 Financial debt 17 7,522,245.01 9,034,750.66

 Deferred tax liabilities 18 1,104,000.00 0.00

 pension provisions 19 164,745.00 60,460.00

 other provisions 20 753,560.96 621,726.24

	 	 	 	 9,544,550.97	 9,716,936.90

	 Short-term	debt

 Financial debt 21 7,182,302.22 12,054,727.71

 accounts payable 22 5,892,106.47 4,528,483.73

 Current income tax liabilities 23 373,029.63 284,000.00

 other liabilities 24 4,132,429.83 4,690,673.84

 other provisions 25 3,030,183.82 3,024,663.59

	 	 	 	 20,610,051.97	 24,582,548.87

	 Total	debt	 	 30,154,602.94	 34,299,485.77

Total	shareholders’	equity	and	debt	 	 50,982,523.37	 52,906,921.73



ConsolidAted inCoMe stAteMent (ifRs) 
for the period from 1 january 2005 to 31 december 2005

€	 	 	 Note	 2005	 2004

 

sales  26 113,534,270.44 114,672,663.03 

other operating income 27 1,332,703.76 1,422,031.06 

Cost of materials 28 -10,487,123.97 -10,422,965.50 

personnel expenses 29 -63,308,712.56 -64,356,549.86 

Depreciation and amortisation 30 -4,717,599.61 -5,226,725.50 

rental and ancillary rental expenses 31 -20,807,785.40 -20,750,809.79 

other operating expenses 32 -10,166,314.20 -10,456,084.85 

Operating	earnings	 	 5,379,438.46	 4,881,558.59	

Financing income 33 86,671.18 88,832.55 

Financing expenses 34 -925,411.19 -1,248,368.00 

share of losses in companies valued at equity 35 -6,999.00 0.00 

losses on financial loans 36 -206,240.46 -185,891.33 

Net	financial	expenses	 	 -1,051,979.47	 -1,345,426.78	

Earnings	before	taxes	 	 4,327,458.99	 3,536,131.81	

Tax expenses 37 -1,754,275.67 -1,522,963.43 

Consolidated	net	income	 	 2,573,183.32	 2,013,168.38	

Earnings	per	share 38

 undiluted  0.57 0.45

 diluted  0.56 0.44
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ConsolidAted CAsH flow stAteMent (ifRs)
for the period from 1 january 2005 to 31 december 2005

€k  	 Note	 2005	 2004

 

1. CasH FloW From opEraTinG aCTiViTiEs

 Cash generated by ongoing business activities 40 11,335 7,159

 interest paid  -750 -887

 Taxes on income paid  -155 0

	 Net	inflow	of	funds	from	operating	activities	 	 10,430	 6,272

2. CasH FloW From inVEsTmEnT aCTiViTiEs

 acquisition of property. plant and equipment 6 -5,172 -2,981

 proceeds from the sale of property. plant and equipment 40 436 1,360

 acquisition of intangible assets 7 -83 -44

 loans paid out 9 -57 -27

 loans repaid 9 187 168

 loans paid out to closely related persons 43 -42 -70

 loans repaid by closely related persons 43 22 16

 interest received  36 83

	 Net	outflow	of	funds	for	investment	activities	 	 -4,673	 -1,495

3. CasH FloW From FinanCinG aCTiViTiEs

 Buyback of own shares 14. 15 -460 0

 receipts from the taking up of financial loans 17. 21 3,998 918

 repayment of financial debt 17. 21 -10,384 -9,421

	 Net	outflow	of	funds	for	financing	activities		 	 -6,846	 -8,503

 net decline in cash and cash equivalents  -1,089 -3,726

 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13 5,113 8,839

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	end	of	year	 	 4,024	 5,113



sCHedule of CHAnges in gRoup equity (ifRs) 
as of 31 December 2005

	 	 	 Note	 Share	 Capital	 Revenue	 Minority	 Total
	 	 	 	 capital	 reserve		 reserves	 interests	 equity

Balance	at	01.01.2004	 	 4,500,000.00	 15,165,776.62	 -3,120,505.62	 0,00	 16,545,271.00

 Consolidated earnings 16   2,013,168.38  2,013,168.38

 Value of the services of 
 employees in connection 
 with employee share 
 option programmes 15  48,996.58   48,996.58

Balance	at	31.12.2004	 	 4,500,000.00	 15,214,773.20	 -1,107,337.24	 	 18,607,435.96

       

Balance	at	1.1.2005	 	 4,500,000.00	 15,214,773.20	 -1,107,337.24	 	 18,607,435.96

 Consolidated earnings 16   2,573,183.32  2,573,183.32

 Value of the services of 
 employees in connection 
 with employee share 
 option programmes 15  107,363.03   107,363.03

	 Buyback of own shares 14. 15 -60,000.00 -400,061.88   -460,061.88

Balance	at	31.12.2005	 	 4,440,000.00	 14,922,074.35	 1,465,846.08	 0.00	 20,827,920.43
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notes to tHe ConsolidAted finAnCiAl stAteMents (ifRs) 
as of 31 december 2005

BAsiC infoRMAtion 

The consolidated Essanelle Hair Group, which consists of the parent company Essanelle Hair Group aG (in short: 

the company or Essanelle) and the subsidiary CFs Coiffure Franchising system GmbH (in short: CFs GmbH) and 

the CFB GmbH shareholdings is one of the leading providers of hairdressing services in Germany. Furthermore, 

Essanelle also sells products exclusive to hairdressers in its hairdressing salons and in specialist sales shops and 

acts as franchisor for proprietor-managed hairdressing salons. 

The store network of Essanelle Hair Group aG comprised 594 hairdressing salons and sales shops as of 31 

December 2005, compared with 575 in the previous year. 45 proprietor-managed salons are affiliated as fran-

chisees via CFs GmbH (previous year: 45).

Essanelle has developed various salon concepts which are targeted at various customer groups under the follow-

ing brand names: 

 – essanelle – ihr Friseur

 – superCut

 – HairExpress

 – Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle

 – Top TEn

 – mod´s hair

The original concept “essanelle - ihr Friseur” is targeted at regular and occasional customers of all age groups. 

The “super Cut” concept is tailored to the needs of younger hairdressing customers, with the “HairExpress” and 

“Jürgen Tröndle by essanelle” concepts being targeted at price-conscious and luxury-oriented customers respec-

tively. Essanelle’s hairdressing salons are in most cases located in department stores and in shopping centres. 

The concept with the name “Top TEn” offers hairdressing services in the 10 euro segment primarily at stan-

dalone locations. The franchising business is predominantly managed under the “mod’s hair” brand name and is 

intended to appeal to individualist and fashion-conscious customers. 
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The head office for all operating units of the Group is located in 

40547 Düsseldorf

niederkasseler lohweg 20

Germany.

The company’s corporate planning provides for an increase in the company’s market share by means of the expan-

sion of its network of outlets. The parent company, Essanelle Hair Group aG, is a stock corporation which was 

converted from Essanelle GmbH on 4 may 2001 by means of a corporate transformation. 

Essanelle Hair Group aG has been listed on the Frankfurt stock Exchange since 22 June 2001. The company was 

listed until 20 December 2002 in the smaX quality segment and until 30 september 2005 in official trading. 

since then, Essanelle Hair Group aG has been listed in the prime standard. as previously, Essanelle Hair Group 

aG has its legal domicile in Düsseldorf und is registered under the number HrB 40749 in the Commercial regis-

ter of the Düsseldorf District Court. 

These consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the management Board on 24 February 

2006. 



MeMBeRs of tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd

The members of the management Board during the year under report and currently are: 

 uwe Grimminger, Kerpen, Chairman of the management Board

 achim mansen, monheim, member of the management Board

subsidiary activities of the members of the management Board:

uwe Grimminger member of the administrative Board (Employer 

   representative) of the Essanelle Company 

   Health insurance Fund, Düsseldorf

achim mansen member of the administrative Board (Employer 

   representative) of the Essanelle Company 

   Health insurance Fund, Düsseldorf

MeMBeRs of tHe supeRvisoRy BoARd

shareholder representatives

   profession

Dr. Hans-Jürgen Knauer, mülheim/ruhr management consultant

Chairman until 24 June 2005

martin Tresser, Canterbury/uK industrial engineer

Chairman from 24 June 2005 

paul Deiters, The Hague/netherlands investment manager

until 7 June 2005

Joachim Dübner, Düsseldorf management consultant

from 15 June 2005

Werner schneider, Cologne Economist

from 24 June 2005

Gabriele Eick, Frankfurt am main management consultant

Dr. Gabriele Fontane, Frankfurt am main lawyer

Jürgen Tröndle, Kelsterbach Businessman 
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Employee representatives

   profession

peter-michael Herold, stuttgart Trade union secretary

Deputy Chairman

marina schacht (previously Becker), Berlin sales manager

until 31 July 2005

Cornelia Glaß, Erlbach salon manager

michael Eberhard, Gerlingen Trade union secretary

ulrike muschalle, Kassel salon manager

until 31 october 2005

ulrike Witt, Essen Hairdresser

Dieter Bonk, Düsseldorf sales director

from 30 november 2005

The following members of the supervisory Board also sit on supervisory or administrative boards at other  

companies: 

Gabriele Eick supervisory boards

   marketing Club, Frankfurt am main (president)

   DmV-Deutscher marketing Verband, Düsseldorf 

   (Vice president)

   Baden-Badener unternehmensgespräche - Gesellschaft zur

   Förderung des unternehmensnachwuchses (Director)

   Administrative boards

   Frankfurter Kulturkomitee, Frankfurt am main (member)

   plan international, Hamburg (member)

   student Exchange organisation aiEsEC Germany (member)

   plan stiftung (member)

michael Eberhard supervisory boards 

   stadtwerke leipzig GmbH, leipzig (member)

   Technische Werke Dresden GmbH, Dresden (member) 

Joachim Dübner supervisory board 

   procon multimedia aG, Hamburg (member)

Consolidated notes



suMMARy of pRinCipAl ACCounting And vAluAtion MetHods

General provisions

The consolidated financial statements of Essanelle Hair Group aG were compiled for the first time as of 31 

December 2005 in accordance with the requirements of international Financial reporting standards (iFrs) as 

applicable in the Eu. in 2004, the consolidated financial statements were compiled in accordance with the Ger-

man Commercial Code (HGB). The consolidated financial statements are in compliance with the legal require-

ments applicable to parent companies oriented towards the capital market and subject to reporting obligations 

pursuant to section 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) in connection with article 4 of regulation (EC) 

no. 1606/2002 of the European parliament and Council dated 19 July 2002 in respect of the application of current 

international accounting standards in their current respective version (ias-regulation).

application has been made of the supplementary provisions of the German stock Corporation act (aktG). The 

group management report as of 31 December 2005 has also been compiled in accordance with the requirements 

of the German Commercial Code (HGB). 

The annual financial statements of subsidiaries and second-tier subsidiaries have been compiled as of the report-

ing date of the Group. in the interests of clarity, individual items have been summarised within the balance sheet 

and the income statement. Corresponding explanations have been provided in the notes. 

The conversion of accounting from the German Commercial Code (HGB) to iFrs has been undertaken in accord-

ance with the requirements of iFrs 1 “initial application of international Financial reporting standards”. 

The consolidated financial statements have been compiled on the basis of historical costs of acquisition or manu-

facture. 

The date of the transition to iFrs is 1 January 2004. The Group has therefore compiled its opening iFrs balance 

sheet as of this date. application has been made of all iFrs accounting and valuation methods valid as of the 

reporting date for the first set of iFrs financial statements (31 December 2005). Essanelle has merely drawn on 

the following possibility of exemption set out in iFrs in respect of complete retrospective application: application 

has been made of the exemption from the depiction of business combinations. no reverse projection was under-

taken for business combinations occurring prior to 1 January 2004.
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account was taken of mandatory exceptions to retrospective application pursuant to iFrs 1.26. 

The impact of the conversion to iFrs on the balance sheet has been depicted in the reconciliation of the share-

holders’ equity as of 1.1.2004 (iFrs opening balance sheet) and as of 31.12.2004. The impact on the 2004 income 

statement (comparison period) has been depicted in a reconciliation of consolidated earnings pursuant to iFrs. 

international Financial reporting standards (iFrs) and interpretations (iFriC) already published but not yet requir-

ing mandatory application

on 26 January 2006, within the framework of its endorsement, the Eu adopted iFrs 7 “Financial instruments: 

Disclosures” and the corresponding amendments to ias 1 “presentation of Financial instruments – Capital Disclo-

sures”. The new explanatory requirements set out herein are to be applied to financial years beginning on or 

after 1 January 2007. Given that these requirements exclusively relate to disclosure obligations, their initial 

application will not have any significant impact on the net asset, financial and earnings position of Essanelle Hair 

Group aG.

The additional interpretations (iFriC 4, 5 and 7) already published and requiring application in subsequent years, 

and the amendments and supplements to existing standards (ias 19, 21 and 39) will also not have any significant 

impact on the net asset, financial and earnings position of the Group.



tRAnsition of tHe sHAReHoldeRs’ equity And tHe ConsolidAted eARnings fRoM tHe

geRMAn CoMMeRCiAl Code (HgB) to ifRs 

Reconciliation of the shareholders’ equity with ifRs as of 1 january 2004:

 

€	 	 	 HGB		 Adjustment	to		 Equity	changes	 IFRS
	 	 	 01.01.2004		 amounts	stated	 due	to	IFRS	 01.01.2004

assETs    

	 Fixed	assets    

 property. plant and equipment 17,756,467.08 -203,000.00 4,598,600.66 22,152,067.74

 Goodwill 20,454,848.92 0.00 0.00 20,454,848.92

 intangible assets 211,641.33 0.00 0.00 211,641.33

 Financial assets valued at equity 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00

 other loans 700,910.02 0.00 0.00 700,910.02

 Deferred tax claims 0.00 0.00 1,656,000.00 1,656,000.00

	 	 	 39,130,867.35	 -203,000.00	 6,254,600.66	 45,182,468.01

CurrEnT assETs    

 inventories 5,425,460.07 0.00 0.00 5,425,460.07

 accounts receivable 311,823.29 0.00 0.00 311,823.29

 other assets 1,751,072.43 4,668.00 0.00 1,755,740.43

 Cash and cash equivalents 8,838,841.72 0.00 0.00 8,838,841.72

   16,327,197.51 4,668.00 0.00 16,331,865.51

Total	assets	 55,458,064.86	 -198,332.00	 6,254,600.66	 61,514,333.52

 sHarEHolDErs’ EQuiTy

 share capital 4,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,500,000.00

 Capital reserve 17,102,563.50 0.00 -1,936,786.88 15,165,776.62

 revenue reserves -10,804,871.63 0.00 7,684,366.01 -3,120,505.62

	 	 	 10,797,691.87	 0.00	 5,747,579.13	 16,545,271.00

 DEBT    

	 Long-term	debt	 	 	 	

 Financial debt 17,512,068.71 -67,519.96 183,628.75 17,628,177.50

 pension provisions 286,632.00 -198,332.00 -30,983.00 57,317.00

 other provisions 0.00 570,323.88 -8,992.75 561,331.13

	 	 	 17,798,700.71	 304,471.92	 143,653.00	 18,246,825.63

	 Short-term	debt	 	 	 	

 Financial debt 0.00 11,153,686.69 811,509.06 11,965,195.75

 accounts payable 4,201,709.34 0.00 0.00 4,201,709.34

 Current tax obligations 0.00 43,864.72 0.00 43,864.72

 other liabilities 18,405,781.08 -11,086,166.73 0.00 7,319,614.35

 Tax provisions 43,864.72 -43,864.72 0.00 0.00

 other provisions 4,210,317.14 -570,323.88 -448,140.53 3,191,852.73

   26,861,672.28 -502,803.92 363,368.53 26,722,236.89

Total debt 44,660,372.99 -198,332.00 507,021.53 44,969,062.52

Total	shareholders’	equity	and	debt	 55,458,064.86	 -198,332.00	 6,254,600.66	 61,514,333.52
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Reconciliation of equity pursuant to ifRs as of 31 december 2004:

 

€	 	 	 HGB	 Adjustment	to	 Equity	changes	 IFRS
	 	 	 31.12.2004	 amounts	stated	 due	to	IFRS	 31.12.2004

assETs

Long-term	assets

 property. plant and equipment 15,409,710.35 -126,664.05 4,237,582.20 19,520,628.50

 Goodwill 17,546,278.32 0.00 2,104,960.03 19,651,238.35

 intangible assets 184,951.59 0.00 0.00 184,951.59

 Financial assets valued at equity 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00

 other loans 535,143.03 0.00 0.00 535,143.03

 Deferred tax claims 0.00 0.00 395,000.00 395,000.00

	 	 	 33,683,083.29	 -126,664.05	 6,737,542.23	 40,293,961.47

Short-term	assets

 inventories 5,826,725.87 0.00 0.00 5,826,725.87

 accounts receivable 248,547.16 0.00 0.00 248,547.16

 other assets 1,528,417.69 -103,248.94 0.00 1,425,168.75

 Cash and cash equivalents 5,112,518.48 0.00 0.00 5,112,518.48

   12,716,209.20 -103,248.94 0.00 12,612,960.26

	 Total	assets	 46,399,292.49	 -229,912.99	 6,737,542.23	 52,906,921.73

sHarEHolDErs’ EQuiTy

 share capital 4,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,500,000.00

 Capital reserve 17,102,563.50 0.00 -1,887,790.30 15,214,773.20

 revenue reserves -9,290,939.93 0.00 8,183,602.69 -1,107,337.24

	 	 	 12,311,623.57	 0.00	 6,295,812.39	 18,607,435.96

DEBT

 Long-term	debt    

 Financial debt 9,387,891.75 -1,125,229.66 772,088.57 9,034,750.66

 pension provisions 329,868.00 -229,913.00 -39,495.00 60,460.00

 other provisions 0.00 577,227.19 44,499.05 621,726.24

	 	 	 9,717,759.75	 -777,915.47	 777,092.62	 9,716,936.90

	 Short-term	debt

 Financial debt 0.00 11,764,017.38 290,710.33 12,054,727.71

 accounts payable 4,528,483.73 0.00 0.00 4,528,483.73

 income tax obligations 0.00 284,000.00 0.00 284,000.00

 other liabilities 15,089,461.55 -10,398,787.71 0.00 4,690,673.84

 Tax provisions 524,000.00 -524,000.00 0.00 0.00

 other provisions 4,227,963.89 -577,227.19 -626,073.11 3,024,663.59

   24,369,909.17 548,002.48 -335,362.78 24,582,548.87

Total debt 34,087,668.92 -229,912.99 441,729.84 34,299,485.77

Total	shareholders’	equity	and	debt	 46,399,292.49	 -229,912.99	 6,737,542.23	 52,906,921.73



Reconciliation of consolidated earnings pursuant to ifRs for 2004:

 

in	€		 	 2004	(HGB)	 Conversions	 Impact	on	earnings	 2004	(IFRS)

 sales 114,672,663.03 0.00 0.00 114,672,663.03

 other operating income 1,263,755.65 55,060.97 103,214.44 1,422,031.06

 Cost of materials -10,422,965.50 0.00 0.00 -10,422,965.50

 personnel expenses -64,329,833.28 67,259.80 -93,976.38 -64,356,549.86

 Depreciation  -6,465,195.54 16,397.03 1,222,073.01 -5,226,725.50

 ancillary rental expenses 0.00 -20,750,809.79 0.00 -20,750,809.79

 other operating expenses -31,711,426.37 20,659,242.18 596,099.34 -10,456,084.85

 income from loans of financial assets 55,060.97 -55,060.97 0.00 0.00

 other interest and similar income 88,832.55 -88,832.55 0.00 0.00

 amortisation of financial assets -185,891.33 185,891.33 0.00 0.00

 interest and similar expenses -1,167,426.27 1,167,426.27 0.00 0.00

Result	of	operating	activities	 1,797,573.91	 1,256,574.27	 1,827,410.41	 4,881,558.59

 Financing income 0.00 88,832.55 0.00 88,832.55

 Financing expenses 0.00 -1,181,194.27 -67,173.73 -1,248,368.00

 losses on financial loans 0.00 -185,891.33 0.00 -185,891.33

Net	financial	expenses	 0.00	 -1,278,253.05	 -67,173.73	 -1,345,426.78

 Earnings before taxes 1,797,573.91 -21,678.78 1,760,236.68 3,536,131.81

 Taxes on income -261,963.43 0.00 -1,261,000.00 -1,522,963.43

 other taxes -21,678.78 21,678.78 0.00 0.00

Net	income	 1,513,931.70	 0.00	 499,236.68	 2,013,168.38
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gRoup ACCounting And RepoRting entity 

subsidiaries

subsidiaries, i.e. companies in which Essanelle Hair Group aG either directly or indirectly controls more than half 

of the voting rights or is able to control their financial and business policies in other ways, have been included  

in the reporting entity. The assessment as to whether Essanelle Hair Group aG is in a position to control another 

company in this respect has taken account of the existence and implications of potential voting rights which 

could be exercised or converted as of the balance sheet reporting date. 

subsidiaries are first consolidated at the time at which Essanelle acquires the possibility of controlling the com-

pany thereby acquired. They are deconsolidated upon Essanelle losing the possibility of control.

The acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for using the purchase method. The acquisition costs relating 

to the acquisition of the company are measured in terms of the cash and cash equivalents spent on such acquisi-

tion, as well as of the attributable present values of assets thereby transferred, shares issued and/or liabilities 

assumed, plus the expenses directly allocable to such acquisition. The identifiable assets, liabilities and contin-

gent liabilities thereby acquired are stated at their attributable values at the time of acquisition regardless of the 

existence of any minority interests. The costs of acquisition in excess of the share of net assets valued at present 

values thereby acquired are stated as goodwill. in the event of the costs of acquisition being lower than the 

share of net assets valued at present values thereby acquired in the subsidiary, then the difference is recorded in 

the income statement with a corresponding impact on earnings. 

inter-company receivables and liabilities are offset, as are inter-company expenses and income. non-realised 

profits on business transaction between group companies are eliminated in full. non-realised losses are eliminat-

ed to the extent that the resulting costs of acquisition/manufacture do not exceed the achievable amount for the 

respective asset. The accounting and valuation methods of the subsidiaries have been adapted wherever neces-

sary to the methods applied by the Group. 



AssoCiAted CoMpAnies

associated companies are deemed to be companies upon which a group company is able to exercise significant 

influence by participating in the financial and business decision-making processes at the shareholding, but which 

nevertheless do not constitute subsidiaries or joint ventures. These include companies at which Essanelle directly 

or indirectly holds 20% to 50% of the voting rights. associated companies are accounted for using the equity 

method. Their initial statement is based on costs of acquisition. any goodwill present upon acquisition (less 

cumulative write-downs) is recorded in the book value of the financial assets valued at equity. 

The Group’s share of the profit or loss of associated companies following acquisition is recorded in the income 

statement; its share in adjustments to reserves at the associated companies which do not impact on earnings are 

recorded under reserves. The counter-entry is made in the book value of the financial assets valued at equity.

should the Group’s share in the loss incurred at an associated company exceed the book value of the net invest-

ment in the associated company, then the Group does not record any further losses, unless it has assumed obli-

gations on behalf of the associated company or made payments as a result of obligations on the part of the asso-

ciated company. 

unrealised profits on business transactions between the Group and its associated companies are eliminated in 

accordance with the level of shareholding. unrealised losses are also eliminated on a prorated basis, unless the 

value of the asset thereby transferred has been impaired. The accounting and valuation methods of the associat-

ed companies have been adjusted wherever necessary to the methods used by the Group.

RepoRting entity

The following companies were included in the reporting entity of Essanelle as of 31 December 2005: 

parent company

Essanelle Hair Group aG, Düsseldorf

direct shareholdings (100%)

CFs Coiffure Franchising system GmbH, Düsseldorf

indirect shareholdings (subsidiaries of Cfs)

CFB Dorsten 1 GmbH in liquidation, Dorsten

CFB ludwigsburg 1 GmbH in liquidation, ludwigsburg 

CFB offenburg 1 GmbH in liquidation, offenburg

CFB Erfurt 1 GmbH in liquidation, Erfurt
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The share capital of the CFB companies amounts in each case to € 37,500. With the exception of the company in 

offenburg, CFs Coiffure Franchising system GmbH holds 83.33% of the shares on its own account (in the case of 

CFB offenburg in liquidation: 50%) and 16.67% in a fiduciary capacity for CCp Coiffure Cosmetic partner GmbH, 

neuss. 

CFs GmbH exercises control over the CFB salons. Their financing and strategic alignment is undertaken via 

Essanelle Hair Group aG. For this reason, in spite of the lack of a majority shareholding, which is also the case in 

offenburg, a group relationship has been assumed between Essanelle and the CFB companies.

pursuant to the shareholder resolution dated 19 December 2003, the CFB companies in Dorsten, ludwigsburg and 

offenburg are in liquidation. CFB Erfurt is in liquidation pursuant to the shareholder resolution dated 12 Decem-

ber 2004. Hairdressing operations have been discontinued in Dorsten and the store premises let to third parties. 

The hairdressing salons in ludwigsburg, offenburg and Erfurt are being maintained within the framework of the 

Essanelle store network.

Via CFs, Essanelle holds a 20% shareholding in CFs-a Coiffure Franchising system GmbH, Vienna / austria. This 

company reported equity of € -84k as of 31.12 2005 (previous year: € -35k). 

CuRRenCy ConveRsion

The consolidated financial statements have been compiled in Euros, which constitute the functional currency and 

reporting currency of the German parent company and of its subsidiaries and second-tier subsidiaries. 

no foreign currency transactions were undertaken either in 2004 or in 2005. in the event of any foreign currency 

transactions being undertaken, then these will be converted into the functional currency on the basis of the 

exchange rate valid at the time of such transaction. profits and losses incurred on the performance of such trans-

actions and on the conversion of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies using the rate 

valid on the reporting date will be recorded in the income statement with a corresponding impact on earnings. 

propErTy, planT anD EQuipmEnT (including financial leasing)

property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition/manufacture and in most cases subject to straight-

line depreciation over their expected useful lives. Costs of acquisition/manufacture include expenses directly alloca-

ble to such acquisition. Costs of repairs are recorded as current expenses. Debt capital costs are not capitalised 

as part of the costs of acquisition/manufacture (ias 23). Grants and subsidies for the acquisition of assets are 



deducted from the costs of acquisition of the respective assets. scheduled depreciation is in most cases based 

on useful lives of ten years in the case of salon furnishings and of four to seven years in the case of other plant 

and office equipment. 

property, plant and equipment classified as financial leasing are capitalised at the beginning of the term of the 

leasing relationship at the lower of the attributable present value of the object leased or the present value of the 

minimum leasing payments and then depreciated over their expected useful lives. The corresponding liabilities 

relating to the leasing relationship are reported under other liabilities. The repayment portion of the leasing 

instalments is then offset against this liability on an ongoing basis, while the interest portion is recorded under 

interest expenses.

Dismantling obligations relating to the salon infrastructure are stated at present values and depreciated over the 

useful life of the salon in question. a provision is simultaneously capitalised as a liability and is compounded 

over the useful live involved until the full repayment amount has been reached.

The assets are reviewed should any triggering event occur, and at least once per financial year, in order to ascer-

tain whether there any indications of value impairments. in the event of the achievable amount for an asset 

being lower than its respective book value, then such asset is subject to extraordinary depreciation. For the pur-

poses of this impairment test, assets are combined at the lowest level for which cash flows can be separately 

identified (cash generating units). should the reason for an exceptional write-down undertaken at an earlier date 

no longer pertain, then the value of the asset is written up to a maximum of the amount of the updated historical 

costs of acquisition/manufacture. 

profits and losses incurred on the disposal of fixed assets are calculated on the basis of the book value of the 

assets at the time of such disposal.

goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess value of the acquisition costs for the acquisition of a company over the attributa-

ble present value of the shares held by the Group in the net assets of the company thereby acquired at the time 

of acquisition. Goodwill arising on account of the acquisition of a company is allocated to the intangible assets. 

Goodwill is subject to an impairment test should there be any reason such test and at least once per year and 

valued at its original cost of acquisition less cumulative write-downs.



58 / 5�

Consolidated notes

pursuant to ias 36, from the time of conversion to iFrs as of 1 January 2004, it is assumed in the case of good-

will that these assets can basically be used on an indefinite basis and are thus no longer subject to scheduled 

amortisation. amortisation is accordingly only to be undertaken in the form of extraordinary amortisation should 

the annual or occasional impairment test render such measure necessary. prior to 1 January 2004, any amortisa-

tion undertaken was offset against the costs of acquisition.

The goodwill is distributed among the cash generating units for the purpose of the impairment tests.

otHeR intAngiBle Assets 

other intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition/manufacture and generally subject to scheduled amorti-

sation over the period of their expected useful lives. moreover, in the event of any occurrences or change in cir-

cumstances indicating that the book value might not be achievable, then the assets are reviewed to see whether 

any write-downs are required. The useful lives amount to between 3 and 5 years. 

finAnCiAl Assets

Financial assets are generally subdivided into the following categories: 

 – Financial assets valued at fair value through profit or loss 

 – loans and receivables 

 – Financial assets held to maturity 

 – assets available for sale

The classification depends on the purpose for which the respective financial assets were acquired. The manage-

ment determines the classification of the financial assets upon their being stated for the first time and reviews 

this classification at each subsequent reporting date. The Group did not hold any financial assets in the “held to 

maturity” or “at fair value through profit and loss” categories in this financial year.

(a) Cash holdings and bank balances are stated at their attributable present value at the time of their arising 

and upon subsequent valuations. 

(b) loans and receivables do not constitute derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

which are not listed on an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services to 

a debtor without any intention of trading in such receivables. They are included under current assets to the 

extent that their maturity does not lie 12 months after the balance sheet reporting date. should this be the 



 case, then they are reported as fixed assets. The subsequent valuation of loans and receivables is general-

ly undertaken at updated cost of acquisition. should there be any doubts as to their recoverability, then 

they are stated at the lower achievable value. They are cancelled from the books in the event of the related 

rights lapsing or being assigned and of the Group having assigned all significant risks and rewards relating 

to its ownership. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash holdings, credit balances at banks and payments in transit at the salons. 

other assets

other assets are stated at attributable present values less any individual write-downs required as a result of 

value impairments. accrued income and prepayments made for assets are reported under other assets. 

deferred taxes 

Deferred taxes are stated using the liability method for all temporary differences arising between the tax base of 

the assets and liabilities and their respective book values in the iFrs financial statements. However, if in the 

context of a transaction which does not constitute a business combination deferred tax arises from the initial 

statement of an asset or a liability which does not have any impact on the loss stated in the balance sheet or 

that stated for tax purposes at the time of such transaction, then no tax accrual shall be taken. Deferred taxes 

are valued at the respective tax rates (and tax regulations) valid or about to be adopted in law as of the balance 

sheet reporting date and which are expected to be valid at the time of the realisation of the tax claim or the set-

tlement of the deferred tax liability. 

Deferred taxes are stated to the extent that is probable that taxable earnings will be available for the temporary 

difference to be offset against. 

Deferred tax liabilities arising as a result of temporary differences in connection with shareholdings in subsidiar-

ies and associated companies are to be stated, unless the time at which such temporary differences can be 

reversed can be controlled by the Group and provided that it is likely that the temporary differences will not be 

reversed in the foreseeable future. 

inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of their costs of acquisition or their net disposable value. The costs of acquisi-

tion are calculated using the first-in, first-out (FiFo) method. The net disposable value represents the estimated 

sales proceeds attainable in the course of normal business activities, less the required variable costs of such dis-

posal.
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shareholders’ equity

The share capital is stated at the nominal value of the shares in circulation. The capital reserve includes premi-

ums paid in cash upon various capital increases, following the deduction of expenses directly allocable to the 

issuing of new shares (stock market flotation expenses), taking due account of prorated deferred taxes. it also 

includes the reserves resulting from the value of employees’ services from share options issued at attributable 

present values. moreover, the premium for the acquisition of own shares is also recorded as a negative item in 

the capital reserve. 

retained earnings and the annual results are stated under revenue reserves. 

financial debt 

The initial statement of financial debt is based on attributable present values, less transaction expenses. in sub-

sequent periods it is valued at updated costs of acquisition. Each difference between the amount paid out (fol-

lowing the deduction of transaction expenses) and the repayment amount is recorded in the income statement on 

a prorated basis over its respective term. 

Financial debt is classified as a short-term liability to the extent that the Group does not have the unconditional 

right to postpone the settlement of such liability to a time at least 12 months following the balance sheet report-

ing date.

pension provisions 

The Group has made two individual commitments to members of the management Board, for which reinsurance 

policies have been concluded. 

The provision stated in the balance sheet is equivalent to the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

(DBo) as of the balance sheet reporting date, less the attributable present value of the plan assets, adjusted by 

cumulative unrecorded actuarial profits and losses. The DBo is calculated on an annual basis by an independent 

actuarial surveyor using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the DBo is calculated by discount-

ing the expected outflow of funds using the interest rate for industrial bonds of top credit standing (interest rate: 

4.25%; previous year: 5.5%). 

actuarial profits and losses based on historic adjustments and amendments in actuarial assumptions are record-

ed over the expected remaining period of service of the employee in question, provided that they do not exceed 

ten percent of the obligation. 



share-based remuneration 

The Group has introduced share-based remuneration plans which are to be settled by issuing own shares and/or 

by means of a conditional capital increase. The attributable present value of the work performed by the employ-

ees as a counter-performance for the granting of options is recorded as an expense. The valuation has accounted 

for the particular circumstances involved in the individual design of the plan at Essanelle. The total expenses 

requiring to be recorded over a period up to unforfeitability are calculated on the basis of the attributable present 

value of the option granted, taking no account of market-oriented exercise hurdles (e.g. profit and sales growth 

targets). The assumptions underlying the calculation take account of exercise hurdles which are not market-ori-

ented in respect of the number of options expected to be exercisable. The estimate as to the number of options 

expected to be exercisable is reviewed at each reporting date. The consequences of any changes in the original 

estimates requiring to be taken into consideration are recorded in the income statement in the form of a corre-

sponding adjustment to equity over the remaining period up to unforfeitability. The payments received upon the 

options being exercised are credited to the share capital (nominal value) and the capital reserves following the 

deduction of directly allocable transaction expenses. 

payments resulting from the termination of employment relationships  

payments resulting from the termination of employment relationships are made in the event of an employee 

being dismissed prior to his/her reaching the regular retirement age or in the event of an employee voluntarily 

terminating the employment relationship in return for the payment of compensation. The Group records compen-

sation payments when it can be proven that it is obliged to terminate the employment relationship with current 

employees in accordance with a detailed formal plan which cannot be reversed, or if it can be proven that it is 

obliged to pay compensation upon an employee voluntarily terminating the employment relationship. payments 

with maturity dates more than 12 months following the balance sheet reporting date are discounted to their 

present values.

other provisions 

all other provisions take due account of all obligations identified as of the balance sheet reporting date relating 

to past business transactions or events and which are likely to be incurred and whose amount can be reliably cal-

culated. The provisions are stated at the amount to be paid and are not offset against positive performance 

amounts. 

in cases where the interest effect resulting from discounting is significant, long-term provisions are stated at 

their discounted payment amounts as of the balance sheet reporting date. The interest portion of additions to 

provisions has been stated under net financial expenses.
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Realisation of income/delineation of expenses 

(a) sales

 sales include the attributable present value received for the sale of goods and services, excluding VaT, dis-

counts and price reductions. sales are recorded at the time at which the goods were delivered or the serv-

ices performed. retail sales and services are generally settled in cash or by debit (EC) or credit card. 

(b) operating expenses

 Expenses impact on earnings upon the service being received or at the time of their being incurred. in 

cases where expenses which depend on certain reference values (e.g. sales rent) are incurred, or for which 

prepayments have been made, then such amounts are delineated as liabilities or provisions.

(c) financing income and expenses

 Financing income and expenses are recorded in line with the periods to which they relate.

(d) operating leasing 

 leasing relationships in which the major share of the risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the 

object thereby leased remain at the lessor are classified as operating leasing. The corresponding expenses 

are recorded in the income statement. The financial obligations resulting from such leasing relationships, 

particularly those resulting from the letting of premises for salons and Beauty Hair shops, have been 

depicted under the multi-year obligations from rental relationships.

finAnCiAl Risk MAnAgeMent 

Financial risk factors

as a result of its business activities, the Group is in principle exposed to various financial risks and other materi-

al risks. it is the responsibility of the overall risk management of the Group to identify and value financial risks 

and to minimise the potential negative effects on the financial situation of the Group in cooperation with the 

operating units (salons).

(a) Market risk 

 General market risks are closely linked to the location risks of the individual salons. in order to identify and 

remedy erroneous developments at an early stage, the principal data available at the individual salons is 

recorded and analysed, with countermeasures being taken when necessary.



 The Essanelle Group is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk given that its activities are 

exclusively based in Germany. 

(b) Credit risk 

 The proprietary business of the Group does not in principle involve any credit risk in view of the fact that 

hairdressing transactions are generally settled in cash. However, risks may arise in individual cases in con-

nection with payments involving debit (EC) cards for which insufficient funds are available. such transac-

tions are handed on to debt collection services for further handling. The granting of loans to franchise com-

panies involves a certain degree of risk. However, these individual transactions are very closely monitored 

by the management Board. appropriate individual write-downs are undertaken on dubious receivables 

relating to payments not covered by sufficient funds and loans granted to franchise companies.

(c) liquidity risk 

 Given that the hairdressing business is subject to economic, seasonal and fashion-related fluctuations, the 

possibility of liquidity risk cannot be excluded. it is the responsibility of the Group’s financial management 

to structure its financial planning in such a way that these influences are suitably accounted for by taking 

financial reserves. 

(d) Cash flow risk and fair value interest risk 

 Given that the Group does not own any significant interest-bearing assets, its consolidated income and 

operating cash flow are largely independent of changes in market interest rates. 

 The interest risk of the Group arises on account of its long-term interest-charging liabilities which are sub-

ject in part to variable and in part to fixed interest rates. The liabilities with variable interest rates expose 

the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The fixed-interest liabilities give rise to a fair value interest risk. 

The Group reacts to the basic existence of this risk by ensuring that it has an appropriate balance of fixed 

and variable interest rates when taking up long-term loans. 

 no application is made of derivative financial instruments.

(e) Material risks 

 as the operator of a large number of hairdressing salons at various locations, Essanelle is subject to cer-

tain material risks, such as fire, burglary/theft, interruptions to operations, third-party liability etc. The 

Group has in principle covered itself against such risks by concluding insurance policies.
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Calculation of attributable present value 

in the case of accounts receivable and payable it has been assumed that the nominal amount less any write-

downs is equivalent to the attributable present value. The attributable present value of financial liabilities stated 

in the notes to the financial statements has been calculated by discounting contractually agreed future cash 

flows with the current market interest rate granted to the Group for comparable financial instruments.

CRitiCAl estiMAtes in tHe ACCounting And vAluAtion 

all estimates and assessments are reviewed on an ongoing basis and have been based on historical experience 

and additional factors, such as expectations as to future events which appear reasonable in the given circum-

stances. 

Those estimates and assumptions involving a significant risk in the form of a major adjustment to the book val-

ues of assets and liabilities within the coming financial year have been outlined below:

(a) estimated write-down of goodwill

 in accordance with the accounting and valuation methods basically determined, the Group subjects good-

will to an impairment test in the event of any occurrence requiring such test to be undertaken and at least 

once per year. This involves the achievable earnings of the underlying cash generating unit, which are cal-

culated by determining its use value, being set in relation to its assets. in the event of the total of the 

expected and discounted cash flows falling short of the asset value of the investment, then a write-down is 

undertaken. This involves adjusting the prorated book value of the goodwill to the reduced earnings pros-

pects. The calculation of the use value requires assumptions to be made (note 7). if the expected forecast 

cash flows or the expected discount rate used in the calculation of the cash flows were to be 10% above 

or below the estimates made by the management, then this would not result in any major changes to the 

existing result of the impairment test.

(b) provision for customer subscriptions and customer vouchers 

 The Group sell subscriptions and vouchers for hairdressing services for which payments are received but for 

which no services have as yet been performed. Given that the obligations still outstanding are not individu-

ally recorded, their scope has to be estimated as of the balance sheet reporting date. in the case of cus-

tomer subscriptions, the estimate is made on the basis of the months of october to December with differ-

ent weightings in each case (october 1/3, november 2/3 and December 3/3), with the figures only being 

Consolidated notes



 included in the calculation if sales are in excess of redemptions. in the case of vouchers, the sales figures 

for the months of october to December are included in the provision, provided that sales are in excess of 

redemptions. if the actual claims were to be 10% higher or lower than the estimated figure, then the provi-

sion would change by an amount of € 87k.

(c) estimated value impairment of salon furnishings

 any impairments in the value of property, plant and equipment as a result of an unfavourable earnings per-

formance at individual salons are also calculated within the framework of impairment tests, taking due 

account of reorganisation and closure measures. The income and expenses underlying such calculations are 

largely based on estimates as to future developments, both in regional and in overall economic terms. if 

the losses actually incurred were to be 10% higher than the estimated figure, then the extraordinary depre-

ciation would increase by approx. € 10k. Conversely, a reduction of 10% in the estimated losses would not 

have any impact on the level of extraordinary depreciation. 

segMent RepoRting

The requirements for segment reporting are met neither in regional terms nor in respect of factual or organisa-

tional circumstances. a regional breakdown of our sales territory is not feasible given that our activities are 

exclusively based in Germany and that the risks and rewards relating to the hairdressing business are largely 

identical within Germany.

The breakdown into marketing lines or salon concepts in terms of factual or organisational structures is not expe-

dient given that only one kind of service, namely hairdressing services, is offered, supplemented by the sale of 

hair care products. although the individual salon concepts have different focuses, in principle the entire range of 

hairdressing services is available to customers at all concepts. our internal reporting is based on accounting 

information at the level of the individual salons. The sales resulting from the sale of hair care products, which 

complement our hairdressing services, are integrated into these evaluations and not managed as a standalone 

segment. The income and expenses from the franchising business, as well as the asset and liability items alloca-

ble to this business, are of subordinate overall significance. 
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pRopeRty, plAnt And equipMent

property, plant and equipment showed the following developments:

 

€	 	 		 Plant	and	 Capitalised	 Total
	 	 		 office	 leasing
	 	 		 equipment	 agreements

As	of	1	January	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 35,588,527.57 7,216,850.66 42,805,378.23

 Cumulative depreciation -16,345,397.81 -4,307,912.68 -20,653,310.49

 Book value (net) 19,243,129.76 2,908,937.98 22,152,067.74

2004	financial	year

 opening book value (net) 19,243,129.76 2,908,937.98 22,152,067.74

 additions 2,980,672.76 510,334.08 3,491,006.84

 Disposals -1,590,839.90 0.00 -1,590,839.90

 Disposals due to deconsolidation -758,331.92 0.00 -758,331.92

 additions to depreciation -3,724,208.09 -663,398.51 -4,387,606.60

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) -101,191.00 0.00 -101,191.00

 Disposals from depreciation 356,897.85 0.00 356,897.85

 Disposals from depreciation due to deconsolidation 358,625.49 0.00 358,625.49

 Closing book value (net) 16,764,754.95 2,755,873.55 19,520,628.50

As	of	31	December	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 36,220,028.51 7,727,184.74 43,947,213.25

 Cumulative write-downs (ias 36) -101,191.00 0.00 -101,191.00

 Cumulative depreciation -19,354,082.56 -4,971,311.19 -24,325,393.75

 Book value (net) 16,764,754.95 2,755,873.55 19,520,628.50

2005	financial	year

 opening book value (net) 16,764,754.95 2,755,873.55 19,520,628.50

 additions 3,962,956.82 1,209,540.37 5,172,497.19

 Disposals -911,428.40 0.00 -911,428.40

 additions to depreciation -3,484,872.08 -749,750.99 -4,234,623.07

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) -49,260.20 0.00 -49,260.20

 Disposals from depreciation 305,384.24 0.00 305,384.24

 Closing book value (net) 16,587,535.33 3,215,662.93 19,803,198.26

As	of	31	December	2005

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 39,271,556.93 8,936,725.11 48,208,282.04

 Cumulative write-downs (ias 36) -150,451.20 0.00 -150,451.20

 Cumulative depreciation -22,533,570.40 -5,721,062.18 -28,254,632.58

Book	value	(net)	 16,587,535.33	 3,215,662.93	 19,803,198.26

investments in property. plant and equipment amounted to € 5.172k in 2005 and with the exception of €	101k spent on iT equip-

ment and copying machines predominantly related to salon furnishings at newly opened salons. The disposals of assets primari-

ly relate to sale and lease back transactions with historic costs of acquisition amounting to €	569k and cumulative  

depreciation of € 20k. These transactions generated income of € 31k.



The additions to write-downs reported for the 2004 financial year included the extraordinary depreciation of the 

salon assets leased to mod’s hair in Dortmund (€ 101k). The leasing agreements have in each case been conclud-

ed for a term of 10 years. The monthly leasing payments amount to € 5k (previous year: € 5k). rental income of 

€ 58k was received (previous year: € 58k).

leasing expenses relating to operating leasing agreements for motor vehicles amounting to € 156k have been 

recorded in the income statement (2004: € 166k). moreover, rental expenses amounting to € 17,950k have also 

been included in connection with the letting of premises for hairdressing salons and Beauty Hair shops (2004: 

€ 17,875k). The impairment tests for property, plant and equipment have been undertaken in a differentiated 

manner in accordance with the individual salon locations based on the cash flows expected from the individual 

salons on an ongoing basis following deduction of prorated overhead expenses, interest and taxes. The cash flow 

forecasts are based on the salon earnings budgets approved by the management. The underlying average values 

were extrapolated over a period of ten years using a discount rate of 10%. no account has been taken of growth 

rates. in 2005, the impairment test resulted in extraordinary depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

amounting to € 49,260.20. in the previous year the extraordinary depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

had amounted to € 101,191.00.

the plant and office equipment includes the following salon furnishings leased to franchisees:

 

 

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

Gross	costs	of	acquisition

 Balance at 01.01  358,457.69 358,457.69

 addition  0.00 0.00

 Balance at 31.12  358,457.69 358,457.69

Cumulative	write-downs

 Balance at 01.01  213,758.69 76,717.69

 addition  20,410.00 137,041.00

 Balance at 31.12  234,168.69 213,758.69

Book	value	at	31.12	 	 124,289.00	 144,699.00

the following rental payments will be incurred in the following years:

     in	€

 Within 1 year   57,856.68

 1-5 years   231,426.72

more than 5 years   42,483.54

	 	 	 	 	 331,766.94
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intAngiBle Assets

intangible assets showed the following developments during the year under report:

E   Goodwill	 Other	 Total

As	of	1	January	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 20,454,848.92 672,029.39 21,126,878.31

 Cumulative amortisation 0.00 -460,388.06 -460,388.06

 Book value (net) 20,454,848.92 211,641.33 20,666,490.25

2004	financial	year	 	 	

 opening book value (net) 20,454,848.92 211,641.33 20,666,490.25

 additions 0.00 43,996.56 43,996.56

 Disposals -121,281.34 -22,252.54 -143,533.88

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) -682,329.23 0.00 -682,329.23

 additions to amortisation 0.00 -55,598.67 -55,598.67

 Disposals from amortisation 0.00 7,164.91 7,164.91

 Closing book value (net) 19,651,238.35 184,951.59 19,836,189.94

As	of	31	December	2004	 	 	

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 20,333,567.58 693,773.41 21,027,340.99

 Cumulative write-downs (ias 36) -682,329.23 0.00 -682,329.23

 Cumulative amortisation 0.00 -508,821.82 -508,821.82

 Book value (net) 19,651,238.35 184,951.59 19,836,189.94

2005	financial	year	 	 	

 opening book value (net) 19,651,238.35 184,951.59 19,836,189.94

 additions 0.00 82,723.65 82,723.65

 Disposals -718,686.86 -1,320.67 -720,007.53

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) -371,008.62 0.00 -371,008.62

 Disposals from write-downs (ias 36) 682,329.23 0.00 682,329.23

 additions to amortisation 0.00 -62,707.72 -62,707.72

 Disposals from amortisation 0.00 1,320.67 1,320.67

 Closing book value (net) 19,243,872.10 204,967.52 19,448,839.62

As	of	31	December	2005	 	 	

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 19,614,880.72 775,176.39 20,390,057.11

 Cumulative write-downs (ias 36) -371,008.62 0.00 -371,008.62

 Cumulative amortisation 0.00 -570,208.87 -570,208.87

Book	value	(net)	 19,243,872.10	 204,967.52	 19,448,839.62



Broken down into salons acquired, the goodwill is structured as follows: 

E   Essanelle-Salons	 Tröndle-Salons	 Total

As	of	1	January	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 19,243,872.10 1,210,976.82 20,454,848.92

 Book value (net) 19,243,872.10 1,210,976.82 20,454,848.92

2004	financial	year   

 opening book value (net) 19,243,872.10 1,210,976.82 20,454,848.92

 additions 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Disposals 0.00 -121,281.34 -121,281.34

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) 0.00 -682,329.23 -682,329.23

 Closing book value (net) 19,243,872.10 407,366.25 19,651,238.35

As	of	31	December	2004   

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 19,243,872.10 1,089,695.48 20,333,567.58

 Cumulative amortisation (ias 36) 0.00 -682,329.23 -682,329.23

 Book value (net) 19,243,872.10 407,366.25 19,651,238.35

2005	financial	year   

 opening book value (net) 19,243,872.10 407,366.25 19,651,238.35

 additions 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Disposals 0.00 -718,686.86 -718,686.86

 additions to write-downs (ias 36) 0.00 -371,008.62 -371,008.62

 Disposals from write-downs (ias 36) 0.00 682,329.23 682,329.23

 Closing book value (net) 19,243,872.10 0.00 19,243,872.10

As	of	31	December	2005   

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 19,243,872.10 371,008.62 19,614,880.72

 Cumulative amortisation (ias 36) 0.00 -371,008.62 -371,008.62

Book	value	(net)	 19,243,872.10	 0.00	 19,243,872.10
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The impairment tests undertaken on the goodwill were differentiated on the basis of groups of salon acquisitions 

(cash generating units), with Tröndle salons forming one main group and the remaining Essanelle hairdressing 

salons forming a further main group. The impairment tests have been based on the attainable income of these 

cash generating units, which is calculated on the basis of their use values. These in turn have been based on the 

expected sustainable cash flows within the main groups of salons following deduction of prorated overhead 

expenses, interest and taxes. The cash flow forecasts have been based on the salon earnings budgets approved 

by the management. The underlying average figures were extrapolated over a period of 10 years with a discount 

interest rate of 10%. no account has been taken of growth rates. in 2005, the impairment test resulted in 

extraordinary amortisation of goodwill in the “Tröndle salons” group amounting to € 371,008.62. This has been 

recorded in the income statement under depreciation and amortisation. in 2004, the extraordinary amortisation 

undertaken on “Tröndle salons” had amounted to € 682,329.23. 

finAnCiAl Assets vAlued using tHe equity MetHod

This relates to a 20% shareholding in CFs-a Coiffure Franchising system GmbH, Vienna / austria. The company 

reported an accumulated loss of € 119k as of 31.12.2005 (previous year: € 70k) and equity of € -84k (previous 

year: € -35k).

the balance sheet statement showed the following development during the year under report:

     €

Balance	at	1	January	2004	=	31	December	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture   7,000.00

As	of	31	December	2005

Costs of acquisition/manufacture   7,000.00

at-equity results   -6,999.00

Book	value	(net)	 	 	 1.	00

the share held by the group in Cfs - Austria is structured as follows: 

€k		 	 	 2005	 2004

 assets  17.7 22.5

 liabilities  -34.4 -29.4

 income  18.4 21.0

 annual net deficit  -9.8 -12.7

 shareholders’ equity  -16.7 -7.0



otHeR loAns

other loans principally relate to loans to proprietor-managed mod’s hair hairdressing salons. 

 

€	 	 		 Loans	to	 Miscellaneous	 Total
	 	 		 mod’s	hair	 loans
	 	 		 franchisees

As	of	01	Januar	2004

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 1,514,910.18 72,940.37 1,587,850.55

 Cumulative amortisation -871,638.64 -15,301.89 -886,940.53

 Book value (net) 643,271.54 57,638.48 700,910.02

2004	financial	year   

 opening book value (net) 643,271.54 57,638.48 700,910.02

 additions from the reclassification of current assets 713,149.82 0.00 713,149.82

 additions   27,332.36 70,000.00 97,332.36

 Disposals -522,111.62 -39,791.68 -561,903.30

 reclassifications 9,555.34 0.00 9,555.34

 additions to amortisation from 

 the reclassification of current assets -595,051.30 0.00 -595,051.30

 additions to amortisation   -185,891.33 0.00 -185,891.33

 Disposals from amortisation 357,041.42 0.00 357,041.42

 Closing book value (net) 447,296.23 87,846.80 535,143.03

As	of	31	December	2004   

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 1,733,280.74 103,148.69 1,836,429.43

 Cumulative amortisation -1,285,984.51 -15,301.89 -1,301,286.40

 Book value (net) 447,296.23 87,846.80 535,143.03

2005	financial	year   

 opening book value (net) 447,296.23 87,846.80 535,143.03

 additions 57,015.20 42,000.00 99,015.20

 Disposals -195,871.34 -45,245.96 -241,117.30

 reclassifications 117,683.33 0.00 117,683.33

 additions to amortisation -206,240.46 0.00 -206,240.46

 Disposals from amortisation 25,000.00 7,000.00 32,000.00

 Closing book value (net) 244,882.96 91,600.84 336,483.80

As	of	31	December	2005   

 Costs of acquisition/manufacture 1,594,424.60 99,902.73 1,694,327.33

 Cumulative amortisation -1,349,541.64 -8,301.89 -1,357,843.53

Book	value	(net)	 244,882.96	 91,600.84	 336,483.80
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inventories have been stated at their cost of acquisition or at a lower net disposable value. Given the risk of 

obsolescence, damage and sinking retail prices, write-downs amounting to € 16k have been undertaken and 

recorded under cost of materials.

The values stated are equivalent to the attributable present values. The write-downs were undertaken on receiv-

ables from franchisees and from customers’ return debit notes in cases where the recoverability was deemed to 

be low. The addition to the write-down in 2005 amounted to € 143,326.39 and has been recorded under other 

operating expenses.

There is no major default risk in respect of the remaining net book value. in view of the short-term nature of the 

receivables, it was not necessary to undertake any discounting.

The Group recorded a loss of €180k from write-downs of receivables during the 2005 financial year  

(2004: € 146k). The loss is reported under other operating expenses in the income statement. 

ACCounts ReCeivABle

€	 	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 Gross receivables  1,148,081.01 948,764.93

 less	 	

 Write-downs  -820,560.87 -700,217.77

	 	 	 	 327,520.14	 248,547.16

inventoRies

inventories are structured as follows: 

€	 	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 Goods for sale  4,435,494.86 4,436,539.10

 Goods for use  1,724,596.16 1,695,927.37

    6,160,091.02 6,132,466.47

 Write-down  -321,700.00 -305,740.60

	 	 	 	 5,838,391.02	 5,826,725.87



The values reported correspond to the attributable present values. no major default risks have been identified. in 

view of the short-term nature of the claims, no discounting has been undertaken.

The effective interest rate for short-term bank deposits amounted to an average of 2.0% (previous year: 1.7%). 

The short-term bank deposits bear interest at variable market interest rates.

sHARe CApitAl

The capital of the minority shareholders was already reduced to zero as of 1 January 2004 by attribution of corre-

sponding losses. The share capital of the company amounts to € 4,500,000.00 and is divided into 4,500,000 

shares in the form of non-par individual shares. Each individual share entitles its holder to one vote. 

otHeR Assets

€	 	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 Bonus claims from suppliers  520,761.91 668,588.14

 prepayments made on assets ordered  358,025.09 126,664.05

 accrued income  130,371.86 98,928.76

 receivables from employees  47,342.50 79,871.86

 Tax refund claims  24,295.52 189,303.92

 other  123,705.79 261,812.02

	 	 	 	 1,204,502.67	 1,425,168.75

€	 	 	 	 31,12,2005	 31,12,2004

 share capital  4,500,000.00 4,500,000.00

 acquisition of own shares  -60,000.00 0.00

	 Balance	at	31.12	 	 4,440,000.00	 4,500,000.00

CAsH And CAsH equivAlents

€	 	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 Credit balances at banks  2,711,116.93 3,671,029.09

 payments in transit  781,320.68 927,554.46

 Cash holdings  531,149.25 513,934.93

	 	 	 	 4,023,586.86	 5,112,518.48
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The company has acquired own shares on the basis of the authorisation provided to the management Board by 

resolution of the shareholders and shareholder representatives at the annual General meeting held on 25 June 

2004. The acquisition of 60,000 non-par individual shares, equivalent to 1.33% of the share capital, was under-

taken in four transactions: 7,275 shares at a price of € 7.70 and 4,750 shares at a price of € 7.74 on 28 october 

2005, 19,600 shares at a price of € 7.70 on 7 november 2005 and 28,375 shares at a price of € 7.625 on 10 

november 2005.

The reason for the acquisition relates to the servicing of the employee share option programme. However, the 

management Board is also authorised to use or collect own shares, subject to the consent of the supervisory 

Board, for the purposes of compensating third parties in the context of the acquisition of companies or sharehold-

ings in companies or of the merger of companies. The portion of the acquisition of own shares relating to the 

share capital has been openly deducted from the share capital.

(1) AutHoRised CApitAl

pursuant to the resolution passed by shareholders and shareholder representatives at the extraordinary General 

meeting of Essanelle aG on 28 may 2001 in connection with the amendment resolved by the annual General 

meeting on 21 June 2002, the management Board was authorised until 1 January 2006, subject to the consent of 

the supervisory Board, to increase the share capital of the company on one or several occasions by a total of up 

to € 2,150,000.00 by issuing new shares in return for cash or non-cash contributions (authorised capital). sub-

scription rights are to be granted to shareholders in this respect. The management Board is nevertheless author-

ised, subject to the consent of the supervisory Board, to exclude residual amounts from shareholders’ subscrip-

tion rights. moreover, subject to the consent of the supervisory Board, the management Board is entitled 

(a) to exclude shareholders’ subscription rights in order to issue up to 450,000 new individual bearer shares in 

return for cash contributions at an issuing amount which does not fall significantly short of the stock mar-

ket price of the company at the time of the issuing price being set by the management Board (section 186 

(3) sentence 4 of the German stock Corporation act – aktG) 

(b) to exclude shareholders’ subscription rights in order to issue up to 1,700,000 new individual bearer shares 

within the framework of a capital increase in return for non-cash contributions for the purpose of acquiring 

companies or shareholdings in companies in return for the transfer of shares in the company.

The management Board is authorised, subject to the consent of the supervisory Board, to determine the further 

details of the capital increase. The supervisory Board is authorised to make corresponding amendments to the 

articles of association in the event of the authorised capital being used following the partial or complete execu-

tion of the capital increase. 
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(2) ConditionAl CApitAl

The annual General meeting held on 28 may 2001 further resolved to conditionally increase the share capital of 

the company by up to € 263.141,00 by issuing up to 263,141 new individual shares in order to service an employ-

ee option program (conditional capital). The conditional capital is only to be executed to the extent that subscrip-

tion rights to shares are issued and that their owners exercise the subscription rights thereby granted. The new 

shares in each case participate in the profit of the company from the beginning of the financial year in which 

they arise as a result of the exercising of subscription rights. The management Board is authorised, subject to 

the consent of the supervisory Board, to determine the further details of the conditional capital increase. in this 

respect, the conditional capital increase serves exclusively to grant subscription rights to: 

 – members of the management Board of Essanelle Hair Group aG,

 – members of the management bodies of certain subordinate affiliated companies 

 – Employees of Essanelle Hair Group aG and of certain subordinate affiliated companies.

The management Board was further authorised to issue subscription rights to parties entitled to subscribe for a 

period of up to six months following the annual General meeting of Essanelle Hair Group aG in 2005. Following 

the expiry of this authorisation, the shareholders and shareholder representatives passed resolution at the annu-

al General meeting on 24 June 2005 authorising the management Board to issue further subscription rights to 

parties entitled to subscribe for a period of up to 6 months following the holding of the annual General meeting 

of Essanelle Hair Group aG in 2008. in the case of members of the management Board of Essanelle Hair 

Group aG, the responsibility for granting subscription rights shall lie exclusively with the supervisory Board. 

(3) sHAReHoldings disClosed 

pursuant to section 160 (1) no. 8 of the german stock Corporation Act (Aktg) 

in 2004 we received the following notifications pursuant to section 25 in connection with section 21 (1) and (1a) of 

the German securities Trading act (WpHG) from shareholders required to make such disclosures, which we in turn 

published in the Frankfurter allgemeine Zeitung on 15 December 2004 in the case of notification no. 1 and on 9 

December for notification no. 2 pursuant to section 160 (1) no. 8 of the German stock Corporation act (aktG):

(1) Frisör Klier GmbH, Wolfsburg, notified us that its share of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG, 

Düsseldorf, had exceeded the 25% threshold on 8 December 2004 and now amounts to 25.80%.

(2) stadtsparkasse Köln notified us that its share of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG, Düsseldorf, 

had fallen short of the 5% threshold on 24 november 2004 and now amounts to 1.56%.
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During 2005, we received notifications pursuant to section 21 (1), 22 (1) sentence 1 no. 2 of the German securi-

ties Trading act (WpHG) from shareholders required to make such disclosures, which we in turn published pursu-

ant to section 25 (1) of the German securities Trading act (WpHG) in the Frankfurter allgemeine Zeitung on 

07.05.2005 in the case of notifications nos. 1 and 2, in the Börsen-Zeitung on 17.05.2005 in the case of notifica-

tion no. 3, in the Börsen-Zeitung on 14.09.2005 in the case of notifications nos. 4 and 5 and in the Frankfurter 

allgemeine Zeitung on 30.09.2005 in the case of notification no. 6.

(1) HalDEr HolDinGs B.V. notified us on behalf of and with due authorisation by inVEsTmEnTs iV-a CusTo-

Dian B.V., inVEsTmEnTs iV-B CusToDian B.V., HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-a C.V. and HalDEr inVEsT-

mEnTs iV-B C.V., in all cases based at 2514 Ea ’s-Grafenhage, netherlands, that

(a) The share held by inVEsTmEnTs iV-a CusToDian B.V. in the voting rights of Essanelle Hair Group aG fell 

short of the 10% and 5% thresholds on 29 april 2005 and has since amounted to 3.79%. 

(b) The share held by inVEsTmEnTs iV-B CusToDian B.V in the voting rights of Essanelle Hair Group aG fell 

short of the 10% and 5% thresholds on 29 april 2005 and has since amounted to 0%. 

(c) The shares held in Essanelle Hair Group aG by inVEsTmEnTs iV-a CusToDian B.V. and referred to in sec-

tion (a) were held in total for account of HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-a C.V. The shares held by inVEsT-

mEnTs iV-a CusToDian b.v. were apportioned to HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-a C.V. pursuant to section 22 

(1) sentence 1 no. 2 of the German securities Trading act (WpHG), so that, following its falling short of the 

10% and 5% thresholds as of 29 april 2005, 3.79% of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG are 

apportioned to HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-a C.V.

(d) The shares in Essanelle Hair Group aG held by inVEsTmEnTs iV-B CusToDian B.V. and referred to in sec-

tion (b) were held in total for account of HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-B C.V. The shares held by inVEsT-

mEnTs iV-B CusToDian B.V. were apportioned to halder inVEsTmEnTs iV-B C.V. pursuant to section 22 

(1) sentence 1 no. 2 of the German securities Trading act (WpHG), so that, following its falling short of the 

10% and 5% thresholds as of 29 april 2005, none (0%) of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG are 

any longer apportionable to HalDEr inVEsTmEnTs iV-B C.V. 

(2) axxion s.a., 5365 munsbach, luxembourg, notified us that its share of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair 

Group aG had exceeded the 5% threshold on 28 april 2005 and now amounts to 13.2222%.

(3) dit – Deutscher investment-Trust Gesellschaft für Wertpapieranlagen mbH, 60329 Frankfurt am main, Ger-

many, notified us that its share of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG had exceeded the threshold 

of 5% on 3 may 2005 and not amounted to 8.89% (equivalent to 400,000 voting rights in public funds). 

(4) FBV Friseurbetriebe-Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Kaiserstrasse 24, 60311 Frankfurt am main, informed us 

that its share of the voting rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG based in Düsseldorf had fallen short of the 

10% and 5% thresholds on 5 september 2005. its share of the voting rights now amounts to 0%.
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(5) luXinia s.à r.l., 23, avenue de la liberté, luxembourg, informed us that its share of the voting rights in 

Essanelle Hair Group aG based in Düsseldorf had fallen short of the 10% and 5% thresholds on 5 septem-

ber 2005. its share of the voting rights now amounts to 0%. all of these voting rights have been appor-

tioned to this company pursuant to section 22 (1) sentence 1 no. 1 in connection with (1) sentence 3 of the 

German securities Trading act (WpHG).

(6) Fpm Funds siCaV, 2 Boulevard Konrad adenauer, l–1115 luxembourg, notified us that its share of the vot-

ing rights in Essanelle Hair Group aG had exceeded the 5% threshold on 1 september 2005 and now 

amounts to 9.42%.

(4) sHARe options 

The Group has introduced share-based remuneration in three tranches for senior employees and the management 

Board. This remuneration is to be settled by issuing own shares in the course of a conditional capital increase. a 

total of 239,620 of the subscription rights to shares thereby issued was accepted. The subscription rights for the 

first tranche (60,928), which were accepted in 2003, entail the right to purchase one share at a subscription price 

of € 2.53. The subscription rights of the second tranche (40,620) accepted in 2004 entail the right to purchase 

one share at a subscription price of € 3.98. The subscription rights of the third tranche (138,072) accepted in 

2005 entail the right to purchase one share at a subscription price of € 6.88. These rights may in each case be 

exercised following the expiry of a lock-up period of at least 2 years. The term of the subscription rights lapses 

upon the expiry of the sixth exercise window following the expiry of the lock-up period. The exercise windows 

begin upon the third and end upon the twentieth stock market trading day following the annual General meeting 

and following the publication of the quarterly report for the third quarter of the financial year. The option right 

lapses if the employee leaves the company within the lock-up period.

The exercising of such rights is also linked to performance targets. The stock market price of ordinary shares in 

Essanelle Hair Group aG must have risen by an average of at least 1% per month between the issuing and the 

exercising of the subscription rights. moreover, it also has to have outperformed the sDaX index over the same 

period. 

The attributable present value of the work performed by the employees in return for the granting of options is 

recorded under expenses. 
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of the addition reported, € 9,900.80 (previous year: € 39,603.20) related to the first tranche, € 37,573.50 (previ-

ous year: € 9,393.38) to the second tranche and € 59,888.73 (previous year € 0.00) to the third tranche.

according to the valuation survey provided by Firicon GmbH, Düsseldorf, the total present value of the options in 

the first tranche on the date of their issue on 29 march 2003 amounts to € 79,206.40 (= 60,928 options x € 1.30). 

The corresponding total present value of the second tranche on the date of issue on 29 september 2004 amounts 

to € 75,147.00 (= 40,620 options x € 1.85).

By analogy, the total present value of the third tranche on the date of issue on 29 september 2005 amounts to 

€ 479,109.84 (= 138,072 options x € 3.47).

The valuation was undertaken using a monte-Carlo simulation taking account of the performance targets and of 

the so-called premature exercise behaviour of the parties entitled to such options. 

in 2005, none of the subscription rights in the first tranche was exercised.

The corresponding prorated reserve developed as follows:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Balance at 01,01  78,698.98 29,702.40

 addition  107,363.03 48,996.58

Balance	at	31.12	 	 186,062.01	 78,698.98

(5) tHe sHARe

Depiction and development of the share price and number of shares issued:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 annual high  8.78 4.35

 annual low  4.35 3.10

 year-end  8.20 4.35

 number of shares  4,500,000 4,500,000



CApitAl ReseRve

The capital reserve contains the premiums paid in cash on the various capital increases and has been reduced by 

the stock market flotation expenses.

The portion of the acquisition of own shares not relating to the share capital has been openly deducted from the 

capital reserve.

Revenue ReseRves

revenue reserves developed as follows:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 premiums on cash deposits of the former 

 GmbH shareholders as a result of capital increases  5,892,650.58 5,892,650.58

 agio from stock market flotation  11,209,912.92 11,209,912.92

 stock market flotation expenses (after taxes)   -1,966,489.28 -1,966,489.28

    15,136,074.22 15,136,074.22

 Value of the services of employees 

 from employee share option programmes  78,698.98 29,702.40

Balance	at	01.01	 	 15,214,773.20	 15,165,776.62

 acquisition of own shares  -400,061.88 0.00

 Value of the services of employees 

 from employee share option programmes  107,363.03 48,996.58

Balance	at	31.12	 	 14,922,074.35	 15,214,773.20

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

Balance	at	01.01	 	 -1,107,337.24 -3,120,505.62

 Consolidated net income  2,573,183.32 2,013,168.38

Balance	at	31.12	 	 1,465,846.08	 -1,107,337.	24
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long-teRM finAnCiAl deBt 

long-term financial debt is structured as follows:

The remaining terms of the long-term debt are structured as follows:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 liabilities to banks  0.00 6,287,891.73

 liabilities relating to financial leasing  1,342,442.38 772,088.59

 investment loans from suppliers  6,179,802.63 1,974,770.34

	 	 	 	 7,522,245.01	 9,034,750.66

	 31.12.2004

     of	which:	remaining	term

€	 	 	 	 Total	 	 2-5	years	 over	5	years

	 Long-term	debt

 liabilities to banks 6,287,891.73  6,287,891.73 0.00

 liabilities relating to financial leasing 772,088.59  762,787.59 9,301.00

 investment loans from suppliers 1,974,770.34  1,974,770.34 0.00

	 	 	 9,034,750.66	 	 9,025,449.66	 9,301.00

	 31.12.2005

	 	 	 	 	of	which:	remaining	term	

€	 	 	 	 Total	 	 2-5	years	 over	5	years

	 Long-term	debt   

 liabilities relating to financial leasing 1,342,442.38  1,342,442.38 0.00

 investment loans from suppliers 6,179,802.63  5,738,006.62 441,796.01 

	 	 	 7,522,245.01	 	 7,080,449.00	 441,796.01



liABilities to BAnks 

no amounts have been reported in the long-term section of liabilities to banks. The amounts reported in this sec-

tion in the previous year related to the following three loans provided by Bnp paribas, Frankfurt am main:

By means of a debt reschedule undertaken following the repayment of € 2.0 million in 2005, the purchase and 

transfer loan was redeemed in full. The credit line showed a corresponding increase and is to be repaid in two 

partial amounts in 2006, which has resulted in the book value of this loan being reported in full under short-term 

financial debt. 

liABilities fRoM finAnCiAl leAsing 

The liabilities are due to various leasing companies and, as in the previous year, charge interest of between 4.5% 

and 8% per annum. 

investMent loAns fRoM supplieRs  

The financing loans for Essanelle and CFs serve to finance investments made in new salons. They are due for 

payment within a time corridor of between 2 and 6 years. The salon furnishings acquired by means of the loans 

have been provided as security with extended retention of title in favour of the lender. as in the previous year, 

the interest rates amount to 2.9%. 

The supplier loans relate to two credit lines at one supplier requiring repayment on a quarterly basis within the 

next six years. The amount to be repaid after 2006 has been recorded under long-term financial debt. The two 

credit lines charge interest at 3-month Euribor plus 0.5% and 1,2% respectively. The interest payments are due 

on a quarterly basis. 

Loan	in	€	 	 Interest	rate	 31.12.2004

 Credit line  Euribor +1.5% oder 2% 1,500,000.00

 purchase and transfer loan  Eonia +1.5% 3,403,075.33

 refinancing loan  Eonia +1.5% 1,384,816.40

	 	 		 	 	 6,287,891.73

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Financing of salon expansion in the Essanelle store network  1,038,726.50 1,616,913.34

 Financing loan for CFs  199,280.12 357,857.00

 supplier loans  4,941,796.01 0.00

	 	 	 	 6,179,802.63	 1,974,770.34
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The values stated in each case represent the present values. unscheduled payments are possible for all existing 

loans. 

defeRRed tAx Refund ClAiMs / tAx liABilities 

Deferred tax claims and liabilities have been netted in cases where there is an enforceable right to offset current 

tax claims against current tax liabilities and where the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The fol-

lowing amounts have been netted: 

it is expected that half of the deferred tax claims on losses carried forwarded will be realised in the current year 

and half following the expiry of a period of 12 months.

Deferred tax claims on tax loss carryovers have been stated at the amount of related tax benefits likely to be 

realised by future tax profits. The Group has reported all deferred tax claims which relate to losses carried for-

ward. 

€k	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004	 31.12.2004
	 	 	 liabilities	 assets	 assets	 liabilities

Deferred	tax	claims	on	losses	carried	forward	 1,893	 	 2,676	

Deferred	tax	liabilities	on	

increase/reduction	in	capital	due	to	IFRS	 	 	 	

 Fixed assets  3,347  2,452

 pension provisions  1  15

 other provisions  366  225

 other liabilities 717 0 411 0

   2,610 3,714 3,087 2,692

Net	balances	 -2,610 -2,610 -2,692 -2,692

	 	 	 0	 1,104	 395	 0



The change in deferred taxes was structured as follows:

The change in deferred tax claims and liabilities in the current year has been calculated as follows: 

pension pRovisions

The provisions figure stated in the balance sheet has been calculated as follows: 

The plan assets consist of the asset value of a reinsurance policy at aXa lebensversicherung aG, Cologne. 

€k	 	 		 2005	 	 2004

Beginning	of	the	year	 	 395	 1,656

Expenses	in	the	income	statement   

 From losses carried forwards -783  

 From increase in capital due to iFrs -716 -1,499 -1,261

End	of	the	year	 	 -1,104	 395

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 present value of the obligations  586,515.00 341,347.00

 attributable present value of plan assets  -318,717.00 -229,913.00

 non-realised actuarial losses  -103,053.00 -50,974.00

Balance	at	31.12	 	 164,745.00	 60,460.00

€k	 	 		 Losses		 Increase	in		 Total
	 	 		 carried	 capital
	 	 		 forward	 due	to	IFRS

As	of	01.01.2004		 3,238 -1,582 1,656

 amount affecting earnings -562 -699 -1,261

As	of	31.12.2004 2,676 -2,281 395

 amount affecting earnings -783 -716 -1,499

As	of	31.12.2005	 1,893	 -2,997	 -1,104
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The following amounts were recorded in the income statement:

The actual income on the plan assets amounted to € 25,389.

The amounts recorded in the provision in the balance sheet developed as follows:

The following principal actuarial assumptions were made:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Current period of service expenses  156,349.00 26,410.00

 interest expenses  17,750.00 13,768.00

 Expected income on plan assets  -9,767.00 -8,504.00

 amortisation of actuarial losses  3,368.00 0.00

	 	 	 	 167,700.00	 31,674.00

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Beginning of the year  60,460.00 57,317.00

 Total expenses recorded in the income statement  167,700.00 31,674.00

 Endowment of plan assets  -63,415.00 -28,531.00

Balance	at	31.12	 	 164,745.00	 60,460.00

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Discount rate  4.25% 5.50%

 Expected income on plan assets  4.20%/3.50% 4.00%

 Future salary increases  2.00%/0.00% 0.00%

 Future pension increases  2.00%/1.50% 1.50%



otHeR long-teRM pRovisions

The anniversary provision covers the financial obligations towards employees upon their attaining expected long-

term service anniversaries. 

The provision for dismantling obligations covers the renovation and conversion expenses expected to be incurred 

upon the expiry of the basic rental period for the hairdressing salons and which the company has contractually 

undertaken to cover.

The amounts stated for provisions for dismantling obligations and anniversaries have been discounted. They have 

been discounted using an interest rate of 6% in the case of dismantling obligations and of 5.5% in the case of anni-

versary obligations. The obligations extend over a longer period; the annual payments resulting from these items can 

be expected to remain at approximately the same level as the payment made in the current financial year. 

sHoRt-teRM finAnCiAl deBt

short-term financial debt is structured as follows:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 anniversary provision  171,166.50 167,000.00

 provision for dismantling obligations  582,394.46 454,726.24

	 	 	 	 753,560.96	 621,726.24

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 liabilities to banks  5,388,000.00 3,100,000.00

 liabilities relating to financial leasing  513,321.48 290,710.33

 supplier financing for salon expansion: Essanelle  578,186.85 578,186.65

 supplier financing for salon expansion: CFs  158,576.88 272,468.56

 shareholders’ loans (former shareholders of Essanelle GmbH)  0.00 2,447,309.43

 supplier loans  500,000.00 5,366,052.74

 interest  44,217.01 0.00

	 	 	 	 7,182,302.22	 12,054,727.71
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interest-bearing liabilities to banks 

This item involves a bank loan to be paid back on two dates in 2006. interest is charged on the loans at Euribor 

+1.5% and +2%. The interest payments are made twice yearly.

liabilities relating to financial leasing 

These involve leasing expenses relating to financial leasing which are due for payment in 2006. 

supplier financing: salon expansion for essanelle and Cfs 

The financing loans primarily relate to supplier loans in connection with the opening of new salons. The interest 

charged amounts to 2.9%. The respective asset items thereby financed have been provided as security and pro-

vided with extended retention of title in favour of the lender. 

shareholder loans (former shareholders of essanelle gmbH)

The loans provided by the former shareholders date from 2001 and were repaid on 31 august 2005 in accordance 

with the respective contractual stipulations. They bore interest at 10%. The portion of interest expenses incurred 

in 2005 amounts to € 139,798.69.

other loans 

These involve the short-term portions of the supplier loans, which are to be repaid in 2006. until then, these 

loans charge interest at 3-month Euribor plus 0.5% or 1.2%, with the interest being paid at the end of each 

respective quarter.

The values stated for all loans are equivalent to their attributable present values. unscheduled repayments are 

possible in the case of all existing loans. 

interest

Cumulative interest liabilities which had not yet been transferred as of the balance sheet reporting date have 

been reported under interest. These relate to the interest payments for the two other loans for the fourth quarter.

Accounts payable 

These primarily relate to liabilities towards suppliers of ongoing hairdressing requirements.  



€k	 	 	 01.01.2005	 Utilised	 Released	 Added	 31.12.2005

 Trade tax and corporate 
 income tax for 
 accounting period 150,000.00 -113,822.17 0.00 0.00 36,177.83

 2004 trade tax 58,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58,000.00

 2004 corporate income tax 76,000.00 -25,372.00 0.00 0.00 50,628.00

 2005 trade tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 106,299.05 106,299.05

 2005 corporate income tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 121,924.75 121,924.75

	 	 	 284,000.00	 -139,194.17	 0.00	 228,223.80	 373,029.63

CuRRent inCoMe tAx liABilities  

The remaining term for current taxes amounts to less than one year. 

otHeR liABilities

other short-term liabilities are structured as follows:

otHeR sHoRt-teRM pRovisions

Composition and development of other short-term provisions:

€	 	 	 	 31.12.2005	 31.12.2004

 social security contributions  1,649,262.08 1,662,600.74

 Wage tax. church tax and VaT liabilities  1,429,524.58 1,768,908.02

 liabilities to employees due to wages. 

 salaries and commissions still to be paid   368,799.99 363,819.27

 VaT liabilities for accounting period   216,919.17 240,000.00

 liabilities relating to rental agreements  253,374.82 509,423.07

 miscellaneous  214,549.19 145,922.74

	 	 	 	 4,132,429.83	 4,690,673.84

€k	 	 	 01.01.2005	 Utilised	 Released	 Added	 31.12.2005

personnel provisions 978,657.15 -967,403.98 -11,253.17 1,226,981.64 1,226,981.64

liabilities from subscriptions 
and customer vouchers 921,000.00 -921,000.00 0.00 867,789.60 867,789.60

miscellaneous 1,125,006.44 -744,241.87 -183,247.39 737,895.40 935,412.58

	 	 	 3,024,663.59	 -2,632,645.85	 -194,500.56	 2,832,666.64	 3,030,183.82
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personnel provisions cover customary obligations towards employees (remaining vacation, outstanding remunera-

tion, mutual insurance associations etc.).

The provision for obligations from customer vouchers covers claims on the part of customers resulting from sub-

scriptions and vouchers for hairdressing services already paid yet not yet taken up as of the balance sheet report-

ing date.

miscellaneous short-term provisions mainly related to provisions for outstanding incoming invoices. 

all other short-term provisions are expected to result in expenses being incurred in the 1st quarter of 2006. 

sAles

Consolidated sales are structured as follows:

sales were exclusively generated in Germany.

otHeR opeRAting inCoMe

Composition:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 revenues from services  95,274,200.09 97,273,098.07

 revenues from sales  16,893,318.68 16,306,069.13

 Franchise fees  669,209.23 616,822.73

 other revenues  697,542.44 476,673.10

	 	 	 		 113,534,270.44	 114,672,663.03

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Cash discount income  355,523.12 392,139.98

 income from invoicing of ancillary rental expenses  323,853.55 213,337.82

 income from release of provisions  204,272.12 184,681.40

 income from disposal of assets  32,901.17 140,456.64

 other income  416,153.80 491,415.22

	 	 	 		 1,332,703.76	 1,422,031.06



Costs of MAteRiAl

Costs of material include:

peRsonnel expenses

personnel expenses are structured as follows:

depReCiAtion And AMoRtisAtion

Composition: 

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Expenses for goods purchased  10,471,164.57 10,542,632.91

 increase/reduction in write-down of inventories  15,959.40 -119,667.41

	 	 	 	 10,487,123.97	 10,422,965.50

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Wages and salaries  51,816,922.77 52,666,803.51

 social security contributions  11,166,886.76 11,585,193.77

 pension expenses for defined benefit obligations  149,950.00 17,906.00

 share options granted to managers and employees

 other payments resulting from the termination   107,363.03 48,996.58

 of employment contracts (compensation)  67,590.00 37,650.00

	 	 	 		 63,308,712.56	 64,356,549.86

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Depreciation of proprietary salon furnishings  3,534,132.28 3,825,399.09

 Depreciation of leased salon furnishings  749,750.99 663,398.51

 amortisation of goodwill as a result of impairment tests  371,008.62 682,329.23

 amortisation of other intangible assets  62,707.72 55,598.67

	 	 	 		 4,717,599.61	 5,226,725.50
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miscellaneous operating expenses primarily relate to administration and sales-related expenses. 

financing income

This relates to interest income amounting to € 86,671.18 on short-term credit balances at banks.

financing expenses

These primarily relate to interest expenses in connection with long-term financial debt.

share of losses in companies accounted for at equity 

The share of losses assumed from the valuation at equity of the associated company included in the Group 

amounted to € 6,999.00 (previous year: € 0.00).

losses from financial loans 

The losses from financial loans relate to write-downs on loans to franchisees.

RentAl And AnCillARy RentAl expenses

Composition:

otHeR opeRAting expenses

other operating expenses include:

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 rent for hairdressing salons and head office in Düsseldorf  17,949,622.82 17,875,370.12

 ancillary rental expenses  2,858,162.58 2,875,439.67

	 	 	 	 20,807,785.40	 20,750,809.79

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 losses on financial loans  206,240.46 185,891.33

 losses incurred on the disposal of receivables  130,483.74 0.00

 Write-downs of receivables  143,326.39 193,367.58

 losses incurred on the disposal of fixed assets  88,834.41 345,178.03

 miscellaneous operating expenses  9,597,429.20 9,731,647.91

	 	 	 	 10,166,314.20	 10,456,084.85



at the balance sheet reporting date, the losses carried forward at Essanelle Hair Group aG amounted to around 

€ 3,397k for trade tax purposes (previous year: € 5,504k) and to € 5,032k for corporate income tax purposes (pre-

vious year: € 6,669k). The losses carried forward may be carried forward for an indefinite period. The losses car-

ried forward resulted in tax accruals amounting to € 1,893k as of the reporting date (previous year: € 2,676k). of 

this amount, € 566k relates to trade tax (previous year: € 917k) and € 1,327k to corporate income tax (previous 

year: € 1,759k). 

Deferred taxes have been accounted for at a percentage of 38.65% (previous year: 38.65%). This is equivalent to 

a trade tax rate of 20%, not accounting for the deductibility of trade tax, a corporate income tax rate of 25% and 

a solidarity surcharge of 5.5%. 

The development of tax expenses has been depicted in the following tax reconciliation account: 

tAx expenses

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

Current	taxes

 Trade tax and corporate income tax for accounting period  0.00 130,000.00

 Corporate income tax for current year  149,000.00 74,000.00

 Trade tax for current year  107,000.00 60,000.00

 other taxes on income  -724.33 -2,036.57

    255,275.67 261,963.43

Deferred	taxes

 Deferred corporate income tax for current year  839,000.00 670,000.00

 Deferred trade tax for current year  660,000.00 591,000.00

    1,499,000.00 1,261,000.00

	 	 	 	 1,754,275.67	 1,522,963.43

€k	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Earnings before taxes  4,327 3,536

 Tax-related modifications  213 73

    4,540 3,609

 Taxes based on a rate of 38.65%  1,755 1,395

 Taxes on income as stated in income statement  1,754 1,523

 of which:taxes relating to accounting period  0 -130

 of which: taxes for previous years  1 2

	 	 	 	 1,755	 1,395
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When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the number of shares issued was increased to the extent that 

employees hold subscription rights relating to the share option programme and simultaneously reduced by the 

number of shares which the company would have been able to purchase at the average share price for the year 

under report from the exercise price received by the company in the event of such subscription rights being exer-

cised. 

The calculation did not include the conditional capital of the company, amounting to 263,141 new individual 

shares, which could nevertheless dilute the undiluted earnings per share in future. 

dividend peR sHARe

no dividend was paid in 2005 and 2004. 

CAsH flow stAteMent

The cash flow statement depicts the change in the level of financial funds as a result of inflows and outflows of 

funds during the financial year. in accordance with ias 7, a distinction has been made between the cash flows 

from operating activites, investment activities and financing activities respectively.

The cash flow statement has been compiled using the indirect method and can be found in annex iV. 

eARnings peR sHARe

(1) undiluted

undiluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the consolidated earnings by the weighted average of the 

number of shares in circulation during the financial year.

(2) Diluted

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Earnings allocable to providers of equity  2,573,183.32 2,013,168.38

 average number of shares issued  4,491,027.05 4,500,000

 Diluted earnings per share (€ per share)  0.57 0.45

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 Earnings allocable to providers of equity  2,573,183.32 2,013,168.38

 average number of shares issued  4,627,477.83 4,571,279

 Diluted earnings per share (€ per share)  0.56 0.44



The inflow of funds from operating activities is structured as follows: 

€k		 	 	 2005	 2004

Consolidated	annual	earnings  2,573 2,013

adjustments for…  

 Taxes (note 37)  1,754 1,523

 Depreciation of property. plant and equipment (note 6)  4,284 4,489

 amortisation of intangible assets (note 7)  434 738

 amortisation of other loans (note 9)  206 186

 additions to other loans (note 9)  -117 -107

 (profits/losses) on the sale of 

 property. plant and equipment  170 273

 (profits/losses) on the sale of 

 intangible assets  36 137

 Expenses relating to share option programme (note 14)   107 49

 interest income (note 33)  -87 -89

 interest expenses (note 34)   925 1,248

 share in (loss/profit) of financial assets 

 valued at equity (note 8)  7 0

Change	in	working	capital	 	

 inventories (note 10)  -11 -401

 accounts receivable and 

 other receivables (note 11)  -79 63

 provisions (notes 20 and 25)  242 -103

 other financial assets valued at 

 attributable present values (note 12)  221 331

 accounts payable and other 

 liabilities (notes 22 and 24)   670 -3,191

 inflow of payments from operating activities   11,335 7,159
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The proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment recorded in the cash flow statement include: 

The differences between the cash flow statements compiled in accordance with the German Commercial Code 

(HGB) and iFrs respectively are of subordinate significance. The financial funds item includes the cash holdings, 

credit balances at banks and payments in transit at the salons reported in the balance sheet.

as of the balance sheet reporting date the company had unutilised credit lines of € 2.0m at two banks.

otHeR finAnCiAl oBligAtions

(1) Financial leasing

n the past years, Essanelle has procured part of its salon furnishings by means of financial leasing. This was 

undertaken both within the framework of sale and lease back transactions, as well as by leasing assets directly. 

The income resulting from sale and lease back transactions was not significant and was recorded in full as 

income with immediate effect. The leasing agreements have been capitalised as assets under property, plant and 

equipment and as liabilities under financial debt in line with their respective terms and conditions. The scheduled 

depreciation has been based on an estimated useful life of ten years. The liabilities relating to leasing agree-

ments have been repaid over periods of between 4 and 5 years. as of the balance sheet reporting date, the com-

pany had leased salon furnishings amounting to € 3,215,662.93 (previous year: € 2,755,873.55). leasing liabilities 

amounted to € 1,855,763.88 (previous year: € 1,062,798.92). as in the previous year, the underlying interest rates 

amounted to between 4.5% and 8%.

€k	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 net book value  606 1,633

 loss on the sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  -170 -273

proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment  436 1,360

€	 	 	 2005	 2005	 2004	 2004
	 	 	 Nominal	 Discounted		 Nominal	 Discounted
	 	 	 amount	 amount	 amount	 amount

 remaining term up to 1 year 622,421.37 513,321.50 362,900.57 290,710.33

 remaining term 2 to 5 years 1,479,319.22 1,342,442.38 857,198.71 762,787.59

 remaining term more than 5 years 0.00 0.00 9,301.00 9,301.00

	 	 	 2,101,740.59	 1,855,763.88	 1,229,400.28	 1,062,798.92



(2) operating leasing

The Group rents numerous store premises for hairdressing salons within the framework of non-terminable operat-

ing leasing agreements. These rental agreements involve various conditions, rent increase clauses, in most cases 

linked to the German retail price index, and extension options, e.g. options for extension for a certain period on 

one or two occasions. The rental expenses for premises amounted to € 17,950k (previous year: € 17,875k).

The Group also leases motor vehicles and various equipment. The expenses relating to these assets amounted to 

€ 156k (previous year: € 166k). 

The following table depicts the existing future non-terminable leasing payments (operating lease):

(3)purchase obligations from supply agreements

The obligation existing as of 31.12.2005 in connection with a purchase agreement with a supplier, which involved 

an amount of € 6,791k for the period up to 31 December 2006, has been annulled in connection with a new 

agreement dated 22 February 2006.

a purchase agreement newly concluded with a further supplier has resulted in an estimated obligation for the 

acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to around € 7m over a period of five years. moreover, the 

resultant obligation for goods amounts to an estimated level of € 49m.

(4) purchase commitments

The obligations resulting from binding orders of assets are of subordinate significance.

(5) possible obligations to adjust purchase price in connection with contracts governing the purchase of share-

holdings. 

The contracts governing the purchase of shareholdings involve potential financial obligations of up to € 1,887k. 

€	 	 	 	 2005	 2004

 remaining term up to 1 year  16,075,790.11 15,742,095.81

 remaining term 2 to 5 years  42,374,530.98 42,546,305.90

 remaining term more than 5 years  8,691,715.97 10,261,189.32

	 	 	 	 67,142,037.06	 68,549,591.03
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(6) Contingent liabilities

The volume of possible claims from liabilities relating to guarantees and loan obligations to third parties on the 

part of affiliated companies amounted to € 371k as of the balance sheet reporting date. at present, we do not 

expect any claims to be made in this respect. 

finAnCiAl instRuMents

The financial instruments reported by the company involve various risks. on the asset side, the financial assets 

involve the risk of default on the part of debtors. on the liabilities side, the liabilities charging interest involve 

risks resulting from variable components in the interest charged on liabilities or from the entire interest charged 

on the liabilities being variable (c.f. notes on liabilities charging interest). as a result, financial instruments are 

subject to interest rate change risks. Essanelle does not deploy any derivative financial instruments.

Business tRAnsACtions witH Closely RelAted CoMpAnies And individuAls 

The loan liabilities of € 2,447,309.43 reported in the previous year towards former shareholders in Essanelle 

GmbH, which was discontinued upon its merger into Essanelle Hair Group aG, were repaid in full in 2005. inter-

est of € 139,798.69 was incurred on these loans in 2005. This has also been paid. 

The interest rate on these loans amounted to 10%.

The company concluded an advisory agreement with Jürgen Tröndle, a shareholder and member of the superviso-

ry Board, on 24 February 1999. This has been replaced by two newly formulated contracts dated 9 February 2006. 

The remuneration paid in 2005 pursuant to the agreement valid as of the reporting date amounted to € 75k (pre-

vious year: € 77k). moreover, travel expenses amounting to € 3k were paid (previous year: € 3k). Furthermore, 

remuneration of € 56k (previous year: € 0k) was paid to the company Tröndle Hairline for the provision of trainers 

to train Essanelle personnel. The overall remuneration of the management Board and the supervisory Board has 

been reported under note 48. 

a loan of € 70k was granted to one member of the management Board at an interest rate of 4.5%. The loan has 

a term of 3 years and is to be repaid quarterly. an amount of € 22k was repaid during the financial year (previous 

year: € 16k), leaving a remaining amount of € 32k at the end of the financial year. 



sHARes Held By tHe supeRvisoRy BoARd And tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd 

The members of the management Board and the supervisory Board owned the following shares in Essanelle Hair 

Group aG as of 31 December 2005:

uwe Grimminger (256,131 shares; 5.69 %) and Jürgen Tröndle (155,750 shares; 3.46 %) held more than 1% of the 

shares issued by Essanelle as of 31 December 2005.

nuMBeR of eMployees

The company had an average of 2,228 (2,209) employees, 1,364 (1,362) part-time employees and 165 (208) train-

ees during the financial year.

BReAkdown of expenses foR tHe gRoup AuditoR

pursuant to section 314 (1) no. 9 of the German Commercial Code (HGB)

The fee for the auditor recorded as expenses in the financial year pursuant to  

section 319 (1) sentence 1, 2 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) amounted to:

 a) for auditing of financial statements: € 125k

 b) for other advisory services € 18k

 c) for tax advisory services € 46k

 d) for other services € 45k

events suBsequent to tHe BAlAnCe sHeet RepoRting dAte And divisions to Be disContinued 

on the basis of the agreement dated 22 February 2006, which takes effect as of 1 January 2006, the existing pur-

chase agreement with a supplier in respect of hairdressing articles has been replaced. The new agreement no 

longer provides for any quantified purchase obligation or for any penalty in the event of the agreements not being 

fulfilled by Essanelle. accordingly, no provision has been taken for the possibility still valid as of the reporting 

date of a contractual penalty being incurred as a result of lower purchases made in connection with the former 

agreement. There have been no further events subsequent to the balance sheet reporting date which have had 

any major impact on the net asset, financial and earnings position of the company. moreover, there are no divi-

sions at which it is planned to discontinue activities in 2006. 

	 	 	 	 Number	 Share	of	total	
	 	 	 	 of	Shares	 volume	of
	 	 	 	 	 E	4.5	million

 management Board  301,111 6.69%

 supervisory Board  181,830 4.04%

	 	 	 	 482,941	 10.73%
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stAteMent ConCeRning CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe

The statement of Compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code (DCGK) required by section 161 of 

the German stock Corporation act (aktG) has been submitted and made available to shareholders on an ongoing 

basis at our homepage at www.essanelle-hair-group.com.

ReMuneRAtion of tHe MAnAgeMent BoARd And tHe supeRvisoRy BoARd 

(1) remuneration of the management Board

The overall remuneration of the management Board amounted to € 1,018k in 2005 (previous year: € 909k). This 

was structured as follows:

The entitlement from share option programmes results from the share of option rights apportioned to the man-

agement Board in the share option programme issued in 2005. The management Board was granted a total of 

49,595 option rights, which have been valued at the fair value of € 3.47 determined for this tranche.

Defined benefit pension commitments have been made to both members of the management Board. a net total 

of € 105k was added to pension provisions in connection with pension commitments made to members of the 

management Board. The total amount of the pension provisions taken for the management Board amounts to € 

165k following the deduction of plan assets. 

(2) remuneration of the supervisory Board

remuneration of € 186k was paid during the financial year.

Düsseldorf, 24 February 2006

uwe Grimminger achim mansen

(Chairman of the management Board) (member of the management Board)

Basic	salary	 Bonus	 Fair-value	entitlement	 Other	 Total
	 	 	 	 from	share	option	rights
	 	 	 	 issued	in	2005	

464,661.24	 364,643.00	 172,094.65	 16,756.32	 1,018,155.21



Audit opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements compiled by Essanelle Hair Group aG, Düsseldorf, con-

sisting of the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement 

and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as well as the group management report, for the financial 

year from 1 January to 31 December 2005. The compilation of the consolidated financial statements and the 

management report in accordance with iFrs as applicable in the Eu, and with supplementary application of the 

stipulations of German commercial law as set out in section 315a (1) of the German Commercial Code (HGB), is 

the responsibility of the management board of the company. our responsibility involves providing an assessment 

of the consolidated financial statements and the group management report on the basis of our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with section 317 of the German 

Commercial Code (HGB), taking due account of the principles governing the proper auditing of financial state-

ments promulgated by the German institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (iDW). These standards require the audit to 

be planned and executed in such a way that any inaccuracies and irregularities with a material impact on the 

presentation of the consolidated financial statements, taking due account of the accounting standards requiring 

application, and on the presentation of the company’s net asset, financial and earnings situation provided in the 

group management report can be identified with adequate reliability. Knowledge of the business activities and of 

the economic and legal environment of the group and expectations as to any possible misstatements are taken 

into consideration when determining the audit procedures. The effectiveness of the internal controlling systems 

in place for accounting purposes and the evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures made in the consoli-

dated financial statements and the group management report are examined, primarily on a test basis, within the 

framework of the audit. The audit includes an assessment of the annual financial statements of the companies 

included in the consolidated financial statements, the delineation of the reporting entity, the accounting and con-

solidation principles applied and significant estimates made by the management board, as well as an evaluation 

of the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and group management report. We believe 

that our audit provides a sufficiently secure basis for our opinion. 
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our audit has not led to any objections. 

in our assessment based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements are in accordance 

with iFrs as applicable in the Eu and additionally comply with the stipulations of German commercial law set 

out in section 315a (1) of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and provide a true and fair view of the net asset, 

financial and earnings position of the group in accordance with the aforementioned requirements. The group 

management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and provides a suitable overall por-

trayal of the position of the group and adequately depicts the opportunities and risks of its future development. 

Düsseldorf, 24 February 2006

pricewaterhouseCoopers

aktiengesellschaft

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

(Weiler) (ppa. schollmeyer)

auditor auditor
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